From	Raweia Karen
i ioin.	Daweja, Karen
To:	EGLE-ROP
Subject:	N0895 - ROP Renewal Application
Date:	Thursday, June 23, 2022 3:05:53 PM
Attachments:	N0895 ROP Renewal Application Form.pdf
	N0895 Mark-up.docx
	PTI 59-19 pre-etch tank.pdf
	Airlane North MA - O&M Plan 10-29-2020.pdf
	Airlane South MA - O&M Plan 6-22-2017.pdf

CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov

Good Afternoon,

Attached is the ROP renewal application for Lacks Enterprises N0895 – Airlane facilities.

Hard copies are in the mail.

Thank you,

Karen Baweja

Lacks Enterprises, Inc. Environmental Manager k.baweja@lacksenterprises.com 616.956.7259 Work 616.481.1926 Cell



RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT RENEWAL APPLICATION FORM

This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, Part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete the Renewable Operating Permit Renewal Application Form.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

This application form should be submitted as part of an administratively complete application package for renewal of a Renewable Operating Permit (ROP). This application form consists of nine parts. Parts A – H must be completed for all applications and must also be completed for each section of a sectioned ROP. Answer all questions in all parts of the form unless directed otherwise. Detailed instructions for this application form can be found at <u>http://michigan.gov/air</u> (select the Permits Tab, "Renewable Operating Permits (ROP)/Title V", then "ROP Forms & Templates").

PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

Enter information about the source, owner, contact person and the responsible official.

SOURCE INFORMATION

SRN	SIC Code	NAICS C	ode	Existi	ng ROP Numb	er		Section Number (if applicable)
N0895	3714	336390)	MI-F	MI-ROP-N0895-2018a		Section Number (in applicable)	
Source Name		·		I			······································	
Lacks Enterp	rises, Inc.							
Street Address						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
4260 Airlane	Road SE							
City			State		ZIP Code	County		
Kentwood			MI		49512	Kent		
Section/Town/Ra	ange (if address not a	/ailable)						
Source Description	on							
Molding and s	surface coating of	plastic aut	omotive	narts				
Ū	jer and jer	piero dat	omouve	purto				
Check her	e if any of the ab	ove informa	ation is d	lifferent	than what a	ppoore in the	o oviatina	
u on the ma	rked-up copy of y	our existing	ROP.		ulan what a	ppears in the	e existing	ROP. Identify any changes
OWNER INFO	ORMATION							
Owner Name								Section Number (if applicable)
Lacks Enterpr	ises, Inc.							(ir applicable)
Mailing address (check if same as s	ource address	5)					
5460 Cascade	Road							

^{City}	State	ZIP Code	County	Country
Grand Rapids	MI	49546	Kent	USA

Check here if any information in this ROP renewal application is confidential. Confidential information should be identified on an Additional Information (AI-001) Form.

Section Number (if applicable): SRN: N0895

PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

At least one contact and responsible official must be identified. Additional contacts and responsible officials may be included if necessary.

CONTACT INFORMATION			Т			<u></u>		
Contact 1 Name			Title					
Karen Baweja			Environmental Manager					
Company Name & Mailing address (🔲 check	if same as so	urce addres	ss)					
Lacks Enterprises Plastic Plate Kraft	5675 Kraft	Ave. SE						
City	State	ZIP Code	Э	С	ounty		Country	
Grand Rapids	MI	49512		ĸ	Cent			
Phone number E			ddre	ess	·			
616-956-7259			eja(@lacksent	terprises.com			
Contact 2 Name (optional)				Title Discator of	f EUS and Pro	tactive Se	rvices	
Ken Bailey		and and and and		Director of			111000	
Company Name & Mailing address (Check	if same as so	ource addre	ss)					
Lacks Enterprises 4949 Broadmoor	Ave. SE	<u> </u>					Country	
City	State	ZIP Co	ode		County			
Kentwood	MI	4951	2	<u></u>	Kent		03A	
Phone number		E-mail	E-mail address					
616-554-2307		k.bail	k.bailey@lacksenterprises.com					
RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL INFORM	ATION			Title				
Responsible Official 1 Name				General F	Plant Manager			
Jim Morrissey		aurea addre			<u> </u>			
Company Name & Mailing address (Chec	k if same as s	o Road S	:55) F)				
Lacks Trim Systems Alfane North 2	200 Allan				County		Country	
City	State		ode ທ່າ)	Kent		USA	
Kentwood		4951						
Phone number		E-ma	il ac rrio	idress	etrim com			
616-554-3479		J.mo	rris	sey@lack	Sum.com			
				Title				
Responsible Official 2 Name (optional)					A Lacks Trim S	Systems		
Bob Bieri		<u></u>		VI d'ON				
Company Name & Mailing address (check	ck if same as :	source addr	ess	;)				
Lacks Enterprises 5460 Cascade R							Country	
City	State	ZIPC	Code	e	County		USA	
Grand Rapids	MI	4954	40		INCEIL			

Check here if an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part A. Enter AI-001 Form ID:

b.bieri@lackstrim.com

E-mail address

Phone number

616-554-7860

PART B: APPLICATION SUBMITTAL and CERTIFICATION by Responsible Official

Identify the items that are included as part of your administratively complete application in the checklist below. For your application to be complete, it must include information necessary to evaluate the source and to determine all applicable requirements. Answer the compliance statements as they pertain to all the applicable requirements to which the source is subject. The source's Responsible Official must sign and date this form.

Listi	ng of ROP Application Contents. Check the box	for th	e items included with your application.
	Completed ROP Renewal Application Form (and any AI-001 Forms) (required)		Compliance Plan/Schedule of Compliance
	Mark-up copy of existing ROP using official version from the AQD website (required)		Stack information
	Copies of all Permit(s) to Install (PTIs) that have not been incorporated into existing ROP (required)		Acid Rain Permit Initial/Renewal Application
	Criteria Pollutant/Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP) Potential to Emit Calculations		Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR) Information
	MAERS Forms (to report emissions not previously submitted)		Confidential Information
	Copies of all Consent Order/Consent Judgments that have not been incorporated into existing ROP	\boxtimes	Paper copy of all documentation provided (required)
	Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan	\boxtimes	Electronic documents provided (optional)
	Other Plans (e.g., Malfunction Abatement, Fugitive Dust, Operation and Maintenance, etc.)		Other, explain: Permit to Install for pre-etch tank associated with question C4

Compliance Statement					
This source is in compliance with <u>all</u> of its applicable requirements, including those contained in the existing ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been incorporated into that ROP, and other applicable requirements not currently contained in the existing ROP.	🛛 Yes	🗌 No			
This source will continue to be in compliance with all of its applicable requirements, including those contained in the existing ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been incorporated into that ROP, and other applicable requirements not currently contained in the existing ROP.	🛛 Yes	🗌 No			
This source will meet in a timely manner applicable requirements that become effective during the permit term.	🛛 Yes	🗌 No			
The method(s) used to determine compliance for each applicable requirement is/are the method(s) specified in the existing ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been incorporated into that ROP, and all other applicable requirements not currently contained in the existing ROP.					
If any of the above are checked No, identify the emission unit(s) or flexible group(s) affected and the specific condition number(s) or applicable requirement for which the source is or will be out of compliance at the time of issuance of the ROP renewal on an AI-001 Form. Provide a compliance plan and schedule of compliance on an AI-001 Form.					
Name and Title of the Responsible Official (Print or Type)					

Jim Morrissey, General Plant Manager

As a Responsible Official, I certify that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in this application are true, accurate, and complete.

6-70-2022 Date

Signature of Responsible Official

PART C: SOURCE REQUIREMENT INFORMATION

Answer the questions below for specific requirements or programs to which the source may be subject.

C1.	Actual emissions and associated data from <u>all</u> emission units with applicable requirements (including those identified in the existing ROP, Permits to Install and other equipment that have not yet been incorporated into the ROP) are required to be reported in MAERS. Are there any emissions and associated data that have <u>not</u> been reported in MAERS for the most recent emissions reporting year? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) that was/were not reported in MAERS on an AI-001 Form. Applicable MAERS form(s) for unreported emission units must be	☐ Yes	No No
C2.	Included with this application. Is this source subject to the federal regulations on ozone-depleting substances? (40 CFR Part 82)	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
C3.	Is this source subject to the federal Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions? (Section 112(r) of the Clean Air Act Amendments, 40 CFR Part 68)	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , a Risk Management Plan (RMP) and periodic updates must be submitted to the USEPA. Has an updated RMP been submitted to the USEPA?	☐ Yes	🗌 No
C4.	Has this stationary source <u>added or modified</u> equipment since the last ROP renewal that changes the potential to emit (PTE) for criteria pollutant (CO, NOx, PM10, PM2.5, SO ₂ , VOC, lead) emissions? If Yes, include potential emission calculations (or the PTI and/or ROP revision application	🛛 Yes	🗌 No
	numbers, or other references for the PTE demonstration) for the added or modified equipment on an AI-001 Form.		
C5.	Has this stationary source <u>added or modified</u> equipment since the last ROP renewal that changes the PTE for hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) regulated by Section 112 of the federal Clean Air Act?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , include potential emission calculations (or the PTI and/or ROP revision application numbers or other references for the PTE demonstration) for the added or modified equipment on an AI-001 Form. Fugitive emissions <u>must</u> be included in HAP emission calculations.		
C6.	Are any emission units subject to the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR)? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific emission unit(s) subject to CSAPR on an AI-001 Form.	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
C7.	Are any emission units subject to the federal Acid Rain Program? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific emission unit(s) subject to the federal Acid Rain Program on an Al-001 Form.	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	Is an Acid Rain Permit Renewal Application included with this application?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
C8.	Are any emission units identified in the existing ROP subject to compliance assurance monitoring (CAM)? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific emission unit(s) subject to CAM on an AI-001 Form. If a CAM plan has not been previously submitted to EGLE, one must be included with the ROP renewal	Yes	🛛 No
	application on an AI-001 Form. If the CAM Plan has been updated, include an updated copy.	□ Yes	No No
	Is a CAM plan included with this application? If a CAM Plan is included, check the type of proposed monitoring included in the Plan: 1. Monitoring proposed by the source based on performance of the control device, or 2. Presumptively Acceptable Monitoring, if eligible		
C9.	Does the source have any plans such as a malfunction abatement plan, fugitive dust plan, operation/maintenance plan, or any other monitoring plan that is referenced in an existing ROP, Permit to Install requirement, or any other applicable requirement?	🛛 Yes	🗌 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , then a copy must be submitted as part of the ROP renewal application.		
C10	Are there any specific requirements that the source proposes to be identified in the ROP as non- applicable?	☐ Yes	🛛 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , then a description of the requirement and justification must be submitted as part of the ROP renewal application on an AI-001 Form.		
	Check here if an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part C. Enter AI-001 For	orm ID: A	NI-C4

PART D: PERMIT TO INSTALL (PTI) EXEMPT EMISSION UNIT INFORMATION

Review all emission units at the source and answer the question below.

D1. Does the source have any emission units that do not appear in the existing ROP but are required to be listed in the ROP application under R 336.1212(4) (Rule 212(4)) of the Michigan Air Pollution Control Rules? If <u>Yes</u>, identify the emission units in the table below.

Yes 🗌 No

If No, go to Part E.

Note: Emission units that are subject to process specific emission limitations or standards, even if identified in Rule 212, must be captured in either Part G or H of this application form. Identical emission units may be grouped (e.g. PTI exempt Storage Tanks).

Emission Unit ID	Emission Unit Description	Rule 212(4) Citation [e.g. Rule 212(4)(c)]	Rule 201 Exemption Rule Citation [e.g. Rule 282(2)(b)(i)]
EUAIRMAKEUP	Campus (6) buildings natural gas usage, air makeup units and heaters	Rule 212(4)(c)	Rule 282(b)(i)
Comments:			
Check here if an	AI-001 Form is attached to provide more inform	nation for Part D. Enter A	I-001 Form ID: AI-

SRN: N0895 Section Number (if applicable):

PART E: EXISTING ROP INFORMATION

Review all emission units and applicable requirements (including any source wide requirements) in the <u>existing</u> ROP and answer the questions below as they pertain to <u>all</u> emission units and <u>all</u> applicable requirements in the existing ROP.

E1.	Does the source propose to make any additions, changes or deletions to terms, conditions and underlying applicable requirements as they appear in the existing ROP?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	If Yes, identify changes and additions on Part F, Part G and/or Part H.		
E2.	For each emission unit(s) identified in the existing ROP, <u>all</u> stacks with applicable requirements are to be reported in MAERS. Are there any stacks with applicable requirements for emission unit(s) identified in the existing ROP that were <u>not</u> reported in the most recent MAERS reporting year? If <u>Yes</u> , identity the stack(s) that was/were not reported on applicable MAERS form(s).	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
E3.	Have any emission units identified in the existing ROP been modified or reconstructed that required a PTI?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , complete Part F with the appropriate information.		
E4.	Have any emission units identified in the existing ROP been dismantled? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) and the dismantle date in the comment area below or on an AI-001 Form.	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	Check here if an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part E. Enter AI-001 Fo	rm ID: Al	-

PART F: PERMIT TO INSTALL (PTI) INFORMATION

Review all emission units and applicable requirements at the source and answer the following questions as they pertain to <u>all</u> emission units with PTIs. Any PTI(s) identified below must be attached to the application.

F1. Has the source been incorpora If <u>No</u> , go to Pa	e obtained any PTIs ated into the existing rt G.	where the applicable requirements from the PTI have not ROP? If <u>Yes</u> , complete the following table.	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
Permit to Install Number	Emission Units/Flexible Group ID(s)	Description (Include Process Equipment, Control Devices and Monitoring Devices)	Date Emission Unit was Installed/ Modified/ Reconstructed
F2. Do any of the F emission units affected in the and deletions in	PTIs listed above cha in the existing ROF comments area belo a mark-up of the ex	ange, add, or delete terms/conditions to established ? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) or flexible group(s) w or on an AI-001 Form and identify all changes, additions, xisting ROP.	Yes No
F3. Do any of the F the ROP? If <u>Ye</u> and include the	PTIs listed above ide es, submit the PTIs a new emission unit(s	ntify new emission units that need to be incorporated into as part of the ROP renewal application on an Al-001 Form, b) or flexible group(s) in the mark-up of the existing ROP.	Yes No
F4. Are there any s listed above tha <u>Yes</u> , identity the	tacks with applicable at were <u>not</u> reported e stack(s) that were	e requirements for emission unit(s) identified in the PTIs in MAERS for the most recent emissions reporting year? If not reported on the applicable MAERS form(s).	Yes No
F5. Are there any p or control devic the ROP? If <u>Ye</u>	roposed administrat es in the PTIs listed <u>as</u> , describe the char	ive changes to any of the emission unit names, descriptions above for any emission units not already incorporated into nges on an AI-001 Form.	Yes No
Comments:			
Check here if a	an Al-001 Form is at	tached to provide more information for Part F. Enter AI-001 F	orm ID: Al-

Section Number (if applicable): SRN: N0895

PART G: EMISSION UNITS MEETING THE CRITERIA OF RULES 281(2)(h), 285(2)(r)(iv), 287(2)(c), OR 290

Review all emission units and applicable requirements at the source and answer the following questions.

G1. Does the source have the existing ROP and	e any new and/or existing emission units which do <u>not</u> already appear in which meet the criteria of Rules 281(2)(h), 285(2)(r)(iv), 287(2)(c), or 29	90.
If <u>Yes</u> , identify the em	ission units in the table below. If <u>No</u> , go to Part H.	📋 Yes 🖾 No
Note: If several emiss of each and an install	sion units were installed under the same rule above, provide a description at the same rule above, provide a description to the same rule above, provide a description date for each.	on
Origin of Applicable Requirements	Emission Unit Description – Provide Emission Unit ID and a description of Process Equipment, Control Devices and Monitoring Devices	Date Emission Unit was Installed/ Modified/ Reconstructed
Rule 281(2)(h) or 285(2)(r)(iv) cleaning operation		
Rule 287(2)(c) surface coating line		
Rule 290 process with limited emissions		
Comments:		
Check here if an A	I-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part G. Enter Al-	-001 Form ID: AI-

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE

Complete this part of the application form for all proposed additions, changes or deletions to the existing ROP. This includes state or federal regulations that the source is subject to and that must be incorporated into the ROP or other proposed changes to the existing ROP. **Do not include additions or changes that have already been identified in Parts F or G of this application form.** If additional space is needed copy and complete an additional Part H.

Complete a separate Part H for each emission unit with proposed additions and/or changes.

H1	. Are there changes that need to be incorporated into the ROP that have not been identified in Parts F and G? If <u>Yes</u> , answer the questions below.	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
H2	Are there any proposed administrative changes to any of the existing emission unit names, descriptions or control devices in the ROP? If <u>Yes</u> , describe the changes in questions H8 – H16 below and in the affected Emission Unit Table(s) in the mark-up of the ROP.	☐ Yes	□ No
H3	Does the source propose to add a new emission unit or flexible group to the ROP not previously identified in Parts F or G? If <u>Yes</u> , identify and describe the emission unit name, process description, control device(s), monitoring device(s) and applicable requirements in questions H8 – H16 below and in a new Emission Unit Table in the mark-up of the ROP. See instructions on how to incorporate a new emission unit/flexible group into the ROP.	☐ Yes	□ No
H4.	Does the source propose to add new state or federal regulations to the existing ROP?	🗌 Yes	🗌 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , on an AI-001 Form, identify each emission unit/flexible group that the new regulation applies to and identify <u>each</u> state or federal regulation that should be added. Also, describe the new requirements in questions H8 – H16 below and add the specific requirements to existing emission units/flexible groups in the mark-up of the ROP, create a new Emission Unit/Flexible Group Table, or add an AQD template table for the specific state or federal requirement.		
H5.	Has a Consent Order/Consent Judgment (CO/CJ) been issued where the requirements were not incorporated into the existing ROP? If <u>Yes</u> , list the CO/CJ number(s) below and add or change the conditions and underlying applicable requirements in the appropriate Emission Unit/Flexible Group Tables in the mark-up of the ROP.	Yes	□ No
H6.	Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete source-wide requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	Yes	□ No
H7.	Are you proposing to streamline any requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the streamlined and subsumed requirements and the EU ID, and provide a justification for streamlining the applicable requirement below.	☐ Yes	□ No

SRN: N0895 Section Number (if applicable):

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE – (continued)

H8. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete emission limit requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	∐ Yes	
H9. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete material limit requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	□ No
H10. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete process/operational restriction requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	🗌 Yes	□ No
H11.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete design/equipment parameter requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	No No
H12. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete testing/sampling requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	No
H13.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete monitoring/recordkeeping requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	Yes	No
H14.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete reporting requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	Nc

SRN: N0895	Section Number (if applicable):
------------	---------------------------------

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE – (continued)

H15.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete stack/vent restrictions ? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	□ No
H16. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete any other requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	□ No
H17. Does the source propose to add terms and conditions for an alternative operating scenario or intra-facility trading of emissions? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the proposed conditions in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	Yes	🗌 No
Check here if an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part H. Enter AI-001 Form	n ID: AI-	



1. Additional Information ID

RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATION AI-001: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Please type or print clearly. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete this form.

SRN: N0895

Section Number (if applicable):

AI-04					
Additional Information					
2. Is This Information Confidential?	🗋 Yes 🛛 No				
Permit to install PTI 59-19 was approved for the installation of a pre-etch tank and is included with this application. This tank changed the potential to emit for VOC emissions. Potential to emit calculations were provided with the permit application for PTI 59-19. PTI 59-19 has already been rolled into the ROP.					

Page 1 of 1

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY AIR QUALITY DIVISION

EFFECTIVE DATE: January 17, 2018 REVISION DATE: September 27, 2019

ISSUED TO

Lacks Enterprises, Inc.

State Registration Number (SRN): N0895

LOCATED AT

4260 Airlane Road SE, Kentwood, Kent County, Michigan 49512

RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT

Permit Number: MI-ROP-N0895-2018a

Expiration Date: January 17, 2023

Administratively Complete ROP Renewal Application Due Between July 17, 2021 and July 17, 2022

This Renewable Operating Permit (ROP) is issued in accordance with and subject to Section 5506(3) of Part 55, Air Pollution Control, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (Act 451). Pursuant to Michigan Air Pollution Control Rule 210(1), this ROP constitutes the permittee's authority to operate the stationary source identified above in accordance with the general conditions, special conditions and attachments contained herein. Operation of the stationary source and all emission units listed in the permit are subject to all applicable future or amended rules and regulations pursuant to Act 451 and the federal Clean Air Act.

SOURCE-WIDE PERMIT TO INSTALL

Permit Number: MI-PTI-N0895-2018a

This Permit to Install (PTI) is issued in accordance with and subject to Section 5505(5) of Act 451. Pursuant to Michigan Air Pollution Control Rule 214a, the terms and conditions herein, identified by the underlying applicable requirement citation of Rule 201(1)(a), constitute a federally enforceable PTI. The PTI terms and conditions do not expire and remain in effect unless the criteria of Rule 201(6) are met. Operation of all emission units identified in the PTI is subject to all applicable future or amended rules and regulations pursuant to Act 451 and the federal Clean Air Act.

Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AUTHORITY AND ENFORCEABILITY	3
A. GENERAL CONDITIONS	4
Permit Enforceability	4
General Provisions.	4
Equipment & Design	5
Emission Limits	5
Testing/Sampling	5
Monitoring/Recordkeeping	6
Certification & Reporting	6
Permit Shield	7
Revisions	8
Reopenings	8
Renewals	9
Stratospheric Uzone Protection	9
Risk Management Plan	9
Emission Trading	9
	10
B. SOURCE-WIDE CONDITIONS	11
C. EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS	12
EMISSION UNIT SUMMARY TABLE	12
EUCHROME4	14
D. FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS	18
ELEXIBLE GROUP SUMMARY TABLE	18
FGN-1	
FGS-1	
FGNESHAPN	
FGEMERGENCYRICE-SI	32
FGBOILERS	35
FGCOLDCLEANERS	39
E. NON-APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS	42
APPENDICES	43
Appendix 1. Acronyms and Abbreviations	
Appendix 2. Schedule of Compliance	
Appendix 3. Monitoring Requirements	
Appendix 4. Recordkeeping	
Appendix 5. Testing Procedures	
Appendix 6. Permits to Install	46
Appendix 7. Emission Calculations	
Appendix 8. Reporting	

AUTHORITY AND ENFORCEABILITY

For the purpose of this permit, the **permittee** is defined as any person who owns or operates an emission unit at a stationary source for which this permit has been issued. The **department** is defined in Rule 104(d) as the Director of the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) or his or her designee.

The permittee shall comply with all specific details in the permit terms and conditions and the cited underlying applicable requirements. All terms and conditions in this ROP are both federally enforceable and state enforceable unless otherwise footnoted. Certain terms and conditions are applicable to most stationary sources for which an ROP has been issued. These general conditions are included in Part A of this ROP. Other terms and conditions may apply to a specific emission unit, several emission units which are represented as a flexible group, or the entire stationary source which is represented as a Source-Wide group. Special conditions are identified in Parts B, C, D and/or the appendices.

In accordance with Rule 213(2)(a), all underlying applicable requirements are identified for each ROP term or condition. All terms and conditions that are included in a PTI are streamlined, subsumed and/or are state-only enforceable will be noted as such.

In accordance with Section 5507 of Act 451, the permittee has included in the ROP application a compliance certification, a schedule of compliance, and a compliance plan. For applicable requirements with which the source is in compliance, the source will continue to comply with these requirements. For applicable requirements with which the source is not in compliance, the source will comply with the detailed schedule of compliance requirements that are incorporated as an appendix in this ROP. Furthermore, for any applicable requirements effective after the date of issuance of this ROP, the stationary source will meet the requirements on a timely basis, unless the underlying applicable requirement requires a more detailed schedule of compliance.

Issuance of this permit does not obviate the necessity of obtaining such permits or approvals from other units of government as required by law.

A. GENERAL CONDITIONS

Permit Enforceability

- All conditions in this permit are both federally enforceable and state enforceable unless otherwise noted. (R 336.1213(5))
- Those conditions that are hereby incorporated in a state-only enforceable Source-Wide PTI pursuant to Rule 201(2)(d) are designated by footnote one. (R 336.1213(5)(a), R 336.1214a(5))
- Those conditions that are hereby incorporated in a federally enforceable Source-Wide PTI pursuant to Rule 201(2)(c) are designated by footnote two. (R 336.1213(5)(b), R 336.1214a(3))

General Provisions

- The permittee shall comply with all conditions of this ROP. Any ROP noncompliance constitutes a violation of Act 451, and is grounds for enforcement action, for ROP revocation or revision, or for denial of the renewal of the ROP. All terms and conditions of this ROP that are designated as federally enforceable are enforceable by the Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and by citizens under the provisions of the federal Clean Air Act (CAA). Any terms and conditions based on applicable requirements which are designated as "state-only" are not enforceable by the USEPA or citizens pursuant to the CAA. (R 336.1213(1)(a))
- 2. It shall not be a defense for the permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this ROP. (R 336.1213(1)(b))
- 3. This ROP may be modified, revised, or revoked for cause. The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revision, or termination, or a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any ROP term or condition. This does not supersede or affect the ability of the permittee to make changes, at the permittee's own risk, pursuant to Rule 215 and Rule 216. (**R 336.1213(1)(c)**)
- 4. The permittee shall allow the department, or an authorized representative of the department, upon presentation of credentials and other documents as may be required by law and upon stating the authority for and purpose of the investigation, to perform any of the following activities: (**R 336.1213(1)(d)**)
 - a. Enter, at reasonable times, a stationary source or other premises where emissions-related activity is conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the ROP.
 - b. Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of the ROP.
 - c. Inspect, at reasonable times, any of the following:
 - i. Any stationary source.
 - ii. Any emission unit.
 - iii. Any equipment, including monitoring and air pollution control equipment.
 - iv. Any work practices or operations regulated or required under the ROP.
 - d. As authorized by Section 5526 of Act 451, sample or monitor at reasonable times substances or parameters for the purpose of assuring compliance with the ROP or applicable requirements.
- 5. The permittee shall furnish to the department, within a reasonable time, any information the department may request, in writing, to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revising, or revoking the ROP or to determine compliance with this ROP. Upon request, the permittee shall also furnish to the department copies of any records that are required to be kept as a term or condition of this ROP. For information which is claimed by the permittee to be confidential, consistent with the requirements of the 1976 PA 442, MCL §15.231 et seq., and known as the Freedom of Information Act, the person may also be required to furnish the records directly to the USEPA together with a claim of confidentiality. (R 336.1213(1)(e))

- 6. A challenge by any person, the Administrator of the USEPA, or the department to a particular condition or a part of this ROP shall not set aside, delay, stay, or in any way affect the applicability or enforceability of any other condition or part of this ROP. (R 336.1213(1)(f))
- 7. The permittee shall pay fees consistent with the fee schedule and requirements pursuant to Section 5522 of Act 451. (R 336.1213(1)(g))
- 8. This ROP does not convey any property rights or any exclusive privilege. (R 336.1213(1)(h))

Equipment & Design

- 9. Any collected air contaminants shall be removed as necessary to maintain the equipment at the required operating efficiency. The collection and disposal of air contaminants shall be performed in a manner so as to minimize the introduction of contaminants to the outer air. Transport of collected air contaminants in Priority I and II areas requires the use of material handling methods specified in Rule 370(2).² (R 336.1370)
- 10. Any air cleaning device shall be installed, maintained, and operated in a satisfactory manner and in accordance with the Michigan Air Pollution Control rules and existing law. (R 336.1910)

Emission Limits

- 11. Unless otherwise specified in this ROP, the permittee shall comply with Rule 301, which states, in part, "Except as provided in subrules 2, 3, and 4 of this rule, a person shall not cause or permit to be discharged into the outer air from a process or process equipment a visible emission of a density greater than the most stringent of the following:"² (**R 336.1301(1)**)
 - a. A 6-minute average of 20% opacity, except for one 6-minute average per hour of not more than 27% opacity.
 - b. A limit specified by an applicable federal new source performance standard.

The grading of visible emissions shall be determined in accordance with Rule 303.

- 12. The permittee shall not cause or permit the emission of an air contaminant or water vapor in quantities that cause, alone or in reaction with other air contaminants, either of the following:
 - a. Injurious effects to human health or safety, animal life, plant life of significant economic value, or property.¹ (R 336.1901(a))
 - b. Unreasonable interference with the comfortable enjoyment of life and property.¹ (R 336.1901(b))

Testing/Sampling

- 13. The department may require the owner or operator of any source of an air contaminant to conduct acceptable performance tests, at the owner's or operator's expense, in accordance with Rule 1001 and Rule 1003, under any of the conditions listed in Rule 1001(1).² (**R 336.2001**)
- 14. Any required performance testing shall be conducted in accordance with Rule 1001(2), Rule 1001(3) and Rule 1003. (R 336.2001(2), R 336.2001(3), R 336.2003(1))
- 15. Any required test results shall be submitted to the Air Quality Division (AQD) in the format prescribed by the applicable reference test method within 60 days following the last date of the test. (**R 336.2001(5**))

Monitoring/Recordkeeping

- 16. Records of any periodic emission or parametric monitoring required in this ROP shall include the following information specified in Rule 213(3)(b)(i), where appropriate. (R 336.1213(3)(b))
 - a. The date, location, time, and method of sampling or measurements.
 - b. The dates the analyses of the samples were performed.
 - c. The company or entity that performed the analyses of the samples.
 - d. The analytical techniques or methods used.
 - e. The results of the analyses.
 - f. The related process operating conditions or parameters that existed at the time of sampling or measurement.
- 17. All required monitoring data, support information and all reports, including reports of all instances of deviation from permit requirements, shall be kept and furnished to the department upon request for a period of not less than 5 years from the date of the monitoring sample, measurement, report or application. Support information includes all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip-chart recordings, or other original data records, for continuous monitoring instrumentation and copies of all reports required by the ROP. (R 336.1213(1)(e), R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

Certification & Reporting

- 18. Except for the alternate certification schedule provided in Rule 213(3)(c)(iii)(B), any document required to be submitted to the department as a term or condition of this ROP shall contain an original certification by a Responsible Official which states that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete. (R 336.1213(3)(c))
- 19. A Responsible Official shall certify to the appropriate AQD District Office and to the USEPA that the stationary source is and has been in compliance with all terms and conditions contained in the ROP except for deviations that have been or are being reported to the appropriate AQD District Office pursuant to Rule 213(3)(c). This certification shall include all the information specified in Rule 213(4)(c)(i) through (v) and shall state that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the certification are true, accurate, and complete. The USEPA address is: USEPA, Air Compliance Data Michigan, Air and Radiation Division, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois 60604. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 20. The certification of compliance shall be submitted annually for the term of this ROP as detailed in the special conditions, or more frequently if specified in an applicable requirement or in this ROP. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 21. The permittee shall promptly report any deviations from ROP requirements and certify the reports. The prompt reporting of deviations from ROP requirements is defined in Rule 213(3)(c)(ii) as follows, unless otherwise described in this ROP. (**R 336.1213(3)(c)**)
 - a. For deviations that exceed the emissions allowed under the ROP, prompt reporting means reporting consistent with the requirements of Rule 912 as detailed in Condition 25. All reports submitted pursuant to this paragraph shall be promptly certified as specified in Rule 213(3)(c)(iii).
 - b. For deviations which exceed the emissions allowed under the ROP and which are not reported pursuant to Rule 912 due to the duration of the deviation, prompt reporting means the reporting of all deviations in the semiannual reports required by Rule 213(3)(c)(i). The report shall describe reasons for each deviation and the actions taken to minimize or correct each deviation.
 - c. For deviations that do not exceed the emissions allowed under the ROP, prompt reporting means the reporting of all deviations in the semiannual reports required by Rule 213(3)(c)(i). The report shall describe the reasons for each deviation and the actions taken to minimize or correct each deviation.

- 22. For reports required pursuant to Rule 213(3)(c)(ii), prompt certification of the reports is described in Rule 213(3)(c)(iii) as either of the following: **(R 336.1213(3)(c))**
 - a. Submitting a certification by a Responsible Official with each report which states that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the report are true, accurate, and complete.
 - b. Submitting, within 30 days following the end of a calendar month during which one or more prompt reports of deviations from the emissions allowed under the ROP were submitted to the department pursuant to Rule 213(3)(c)(ii), a certification by a Responsible Official which states that, "based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information contained in each of the reports submitted during the previous month were true, accurate, and complete." The certification shall include a listing of the reports that are being certified. Any report submitted pursuant to Rule 213(3)(c)(ii) that will be certified on a monthly basis pursuant to this paragraph shall include a statement that certification of the report will be provided within 30 days following the end of the calendar month.
- 23. Semiannually for the term of the ROP as detailed in the special conditions, or more frequently if specified, the permittee shall submit certified reports of any required monitoring to the appropriate AQD District Office. All instances of deviations from ROP requirements during the reporting period shall be clearly identified in the reports. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 24. On an annual basis, the permittee shall report the actual emissions, or the information necessary to determine the actual emissions, of each regulated air pollutant as defined in Rule 212(6) for each emission unit utilizing the emissions inventory forms provided by the department. **(R 336.1212(6))**
- 25. The permittee shall provide notice of an abnormal condition, start-up, shutdown, or malfunction that results in emissions of a hazardous or toxic air pollutant which continue for more than one hour in excess of any applicable standard or limitation, or emissions of any air contaminant continuing for more than two hours in excess of an applicable standard or limitation, as required in Rule 912, to the appropriate AQD District Office. The notice shall be provided not later than two business days after the start-up, shutdown, or discovery of the abnormal conditions or malfunction. Notice shall be by any reasonable means, including electronic, telephonic, or oral communication. Written reports, if required under Rule 912, must be submitted to the appropriate AQD District Supervisor within 10 days after the start-up or shutdown occurred, within 10 days after the abnormal conditions or malfunction, whichever is first. The written reports shall include all of the information required in Rule 912(5) and shall be certified by a Responsible Official in a manner consistent with the CAA.² (**R 336.1912**)

Permit Shield

- 26. Compliance with the conditions of the ROP shall be considered compliance with any applicable requirements as of the date of ROP issuance, if either of the following provisions is satisfied. (R 336.1213(6)(a)(i), R 336.1213(6)(a)(ii))
 - a. The applicable requirements are included and are specifically identified in the ROP.
 - b. The permit includes a determination or concise summary of the determination by the department that other specifically identified requirements are not applicable to the stationary source.

Any requirements identified in Part E of this ROP have been identified as non-applicable to this ROP and are included in the permit shield.

- 27. Nothing in this ROP shall alter or affect any of the following:
 - a. The provisions of Section 303 of the CAA, emergency orders, including the authority of the USEPA under Section 303 of the CAA. (R 336.1213(6)(b)(i))
 - b. The liability of the owner or operator of this source for any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time of this ROP issuance. (R 336.1213(6)(b)(ii))
 - c. The applicable requirements of the acid rain program, consistent with Section 408(a) of the CAA. (R 336.1213(6)(b)(iii))

- d. The ability of the USEPA to obtain information from a source pursuant to Section 114 of the CAA. (R 336.1213(6)(b)(iv))
- 28. The permit shield shall not apply to provisions incorporated into this ROP through procedures for any of the following:
 - a. Operational flexibility changes made pursuant to Rule 215. (R 336.1215(5))
 - b. Administrative Amendments made pursuant to Rule 216(1)(a)(i)-(iv). (R 336.1216(1)(b)(iii))
 - c. Administrative Amendments made pursuant to Rule 216(1)(a)(v) until the amendment has been approved by the department. (**R 336.1216(1)(c)(iii)**)
 - d. Minor Permit Modifications made pursuant to Rule 216(2). (R 336.1216(2)(f))
 - e. State-Only Modifications made pursuant to Rule 216(4) until the changes have been approved by the department. (R 336.1216(4)(e))
- 29. Expiration of this ROP results in the loss of the permit shield. If a timely and administratively complete application for renewal is submitted not more than 18 months, but not less than 6 months, before the expiration date of the ROP, but the department fails to take final action before the end of the ROP term, the existing ROP does not expire until the renewal is issued or denied, and the permit shield shall extend beyond the original ROP term until the department takes final action. (R 336.1217(1)(c), R 336.1217(1)(a))

Revisions

- 30. For changes to any process or process equipment covered by this ROP that do not require a revision of the ROP pursuant to Rule 216, the permittee must comply with Rule 215. (R 336.1215, R 336.1216)
- 31. A change in ownership or operational control of a stationary source covered by this ROP shall be made pursuant to Rule 216(1). (R 336.1219(2))
- 32. For revisions to this ROP, an administratively complete application shall be considered timely if it is received by the department in accordance with the time frames specified in Rule 216. (**R 336.1210(10)**)
- 33. Pursuant to Rule 216(1)(b)(iii), Rule 216(2)(d) and Rule 216(4)(d), after a change has been made, and until the department takes final action, the permittee shall comply with both the applicable requirements governing the change and the ROP terms and conditions proposed in the application for the modification. During this time period, the permittee may choose to not comply with the existing ROP terms and conditions that the application seeks to change. However, if the permittee fails to comply with the ROP terms and conditions proposed in the application during this time period, the terms and conditions in the ROP are enforceable. (R 336.1216(1)(c)(iii), R 336.1216(2)(d), R 336.1216(4)(d))

Reopenings

- 34. A ROP shall be reopened by the department prior to the expiration date and revised by the department under any of the following circumstances:
 - a. If additional requirements become applicable to this stationary source with three or more years remaining in the term of the ROP, but not if the effective date of the new applicable requirement is later than the ROP expiration date. (R 336.1217(2)(a)(i))
 - b. If additional requirements pursuant to Title IV of the CAA become applicable to this stationary source. (R 336.1217(2)(a)(ii))
 - c. If the department determines that the ROP contains a material mistake, information required by any applicable requirement was omitted, or inaccurate statements were made in establishing emission limits or the terms or conditions of the ROP. (R 336.1217(2)(a)(iii))
 - d. If the department determines that the ROP must be revised to ensure compliance with the applicable requirements. (R 336.1217(2)(a)(iv))

Renewals

35. For renewal of this ROP, an administratively complete application shall be considered timely if it is received by the department not more than 18 months, but not less than 6 months, before the expiration date of the ROP. (R 336.1210(8))

Stratospheric Ozone Protection

- 36. If the permittee is subject to Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 82 and services, maintains, or repairs appliances except for motor vehicle air conditioners (MVAC), or disposes of appliances containing refrigerant, including MVAC and small appliances, or if the permittee is a refrigerant reclaimer, appliance owner or a manufacturer of appliances or recycling and recovery equipment, the permittee shall comply with all applicable standards for recycling and emissions reduction pursuant to 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart F.
- 37. If the permittee is subject to 40 CFR Part 82, and performs a service on motor (fleet) vehicles when this service involves refrigerant in the MVAC, the permittee is subject to all the applicable requirements as specified in 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart B, Servicing of Motor Vehicle Air Conditioners. The term "motor vehicle" as used in Subpart B does not include a vehicle in which final assembly of the vehicle has not been completed by the original equipment manufacturer. The term MVAC as used in Subpart B does not include the air-tight sealed refrigeration system used for refrigerated cargo or an air conditioning system on passenger buses using Hydrochlorofluorocarbon-22 refrigerant.

Risk Management Plan

- 38. If subject to Section 112(r) of the CAA and 40 CFR Part 68, the permittee shall register and submit to the USEPA the required data related to the risk management plan for reducing the probability of accidental releases of any regulated substances listed pursuant to Section 112(r)(3) of the CAA as amended in 40 CFR 68.130. The list of substances, threshold quantities, and accident prevention regulations promulgated under 40 CFR Part 68, do not limit in any way the general duty provisions under Section 112(r)(1).
- 39. If subject to Section 112(r) of the CAA and 40 CFR Part 68, the permittee shall comply with the requirements of 40 CFR Part 68, no later than the latest of the following dates as provided in 40 CFR 68.10(a):
 - a. June 21, 1999,
 - b. Three years after the date on which a regulated substance is first listed under 40 CFR 68.130, or
 - c. The date on which a regulated substance is first present above a threshold quantity in a process.
- 40. If subject to Section 112(r) of the CAA and 40 CFR Part 68, the permittee shall submit any additional relevant information requested by any regulatory agency necessary to ensure compliance with the requirements of 40 CFR Part 68.
- 41. If subject to Section 112(r) of the CAA and 40 CFR Part 68, the permittee shall annually certify compliance with all applicable requirements of Section 112(r) as detailed in Rule 213(4)(c)). **(40 CFR Part 68)**

Emission Trading

42. Emission averaging and emission reduction credit trading are allowed pursuant to any applicable interstate or regional emission trading program that has been approved by the Administrator of the USEPA as a part of Michigan's State Implementation Plan. Such activities must comply with Rule 215 and Rule 216. (R 336.1213(12))

Permit to Install (PTI)

- 43. The process or process equipment included in this permit shall not be reconstructed, relocated, or modified unless a PTI authorizing such action is issued by the department, except to the extent such action is exempt from the PTI requirements by any applicable rule.² (**R 336.1201(1)**)
- 44. The department may, after notice and opportunity for a hearing, revoke PTI terms or conditions if evidence indicates the process or process equipment is not performing in accordance with the terms and conditions of the PTI or is violating the department's rules or the CAA.² (R 336.1201(8), Section 5510 of Act 451)
- 45. The terms and conditions of a PTI shall apply to any person or legal entity that now or hereafter owns or operates the process or process equipment at the location authorized by the PTI. If a new owner or operator submits a written request to the department pursuant to Rule 219 and the department approves the request, this PTI will be amended to reflect the change of ownership or operational control. The request must include all of the information required by Subrules (1)(a), (b) and (c) of Rule 219. The written request shall be sent to the appropriate AQD District Supervisor, EGLE.² (R 336.1219)
- 46. If the installation, reconstruction, relocation, or modification of the equipment for which PTI terms and conditions have been approved has not commenced within 18 months of the original PTI issuance date, or has been interrupted for 18 months, the applicable terms and conditions from that PTI, as incorporated into the ROP, shall become void unless otherwise authorized by the department. Furthermore, the person to whom that PTI was issued, or the designated authorized agent, shall notify the department via the Supervisor, Permit Section, EGLE, AQD, P. O. Box 30260, Lansing, Michigan 48909, if it is decided not to pursue the installation, reconstruction, relocation, or modification of the equipment allowed by the terms and conditions from that PTI.² (R 336.1201(4))

Footnotes:

¹This condition is state-only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

²This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

B. SOURCE-WIDE CONDITIONS

Part B outlines the Source-Wide Terms and Conditions that apply to this stationary source. The permittee is subject to these special conditions for the stationary source in addition to the general conditions in Part A and any other terms and conditions contained in this ROP.

The permittee shall comply with all specific details in the special conditions and the underlying applicable requirements cited. If a specific condition type does not apply to this source, NA (not applicable) has been used in the table. If there are no Source-Wide Conditions, this section will be left blank.

C. EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

Part C outlines terms and conditions that are specific to individual emission units listed in the Emission Unit Summary Table. The permittee is subject to the special conditions for each emission unit in addition to the General Conditions in Part A and any other terms and conditions contained in this ROP.

The permittee shall comply with all specific details in the special conditions and the underlying applicable requirements cited. If a specific condition type does not apply, NA (not applicable) has been used in the table. If there are no conditions specific to individual emission units, this section will be left blank.

EMISSION UNIT SUMMARY TABLE

The descriptions provided below are for informational purposes and do not constitute enforceable conditions.

Emission Unit ID	Emission Unit Description (Including Process Equipment & Control Device(s))	Installation Date/ Modification Date	Flexible Group ID
EUPN-1	This emission group consists of four semi- bright nickel tanks. Stack ID SVN-1A.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-2	This emission group consists of three bright nickel tanks. Stack ID SVN-1B.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-3	This emission group consists of one microporous nickel and one chrome pre-dip tank. Stack ID SVN-1B.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-4	This emission group consists of four copper- acid tanks. Stack ID SVN-3.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-5	This emission group consists of one copper- strike tank. Stack ID SVN-3.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-6	This emission group consists of one electroless copper/electroless nickel tank controlled by a packed bed scrubber with mist eliminator. Stack ID SVN-4	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-7	This emission group consists of one accelerator tank. Stack ID SVN-5.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-8	This emission group consists of one catalyst tank. Stack ID SVN-5.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-9	This emission group consists of one neutralizer tank. Stack ID SVN-5.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-10	This emission group consists of three chrome etch tanks, one etch regeneration unit and one evaporator/reclaim unit controlled by a composite mesh pad scrubber. Stack ID SVN- 6.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-11	This emission group consists of one conditioner tank. Stack ID SVN-7.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-12	This emission group consists of three chrome plate tanks and one purification tank and one evaporator/reclaim unit controlled by a composite mesh pad. Stack ID SVN-2.	8-27-1998	FGN-1 FGNESHAPN
EUPN-13	This emission group consists of one chrome strip tank and one nitric strip tank controlled by a packed bed scrubber with mist eliminator. Stack ID SVN-8.	8-27-1998	FGN-1

Emission Unit ID	Emission Unit ID Emission Unit Description (Including Process Equipment & Control		Flexible Group ID
	20000(3))	Date	
EUPN-14	This emission unit consists of one pre-etch tank. Stack ID SVN-7.	06-19-2019	FGN-1
EUPS-1	This emission group consists of five copper- acid tanks. Stack ID SVS-P12.	2-12-1985	FGS-1
EUPS-2	This emission group consists of one copper- strike tanks. Stack ID SVS-P18.	2-12-1985	FGS-1
EUPS-3	This emission group consists of one electroless copper/electroless nickel tank controlled by a packed bed scrubber. Stack ID SVS-P13.	2-12-1985/ 10-6-2017	FGS-1
EUPS-4	This emission group consists of one accelerator tank. Stack ID SVS-P14.	2-12-1985	FGS-1
EUPS-5	This emission group consists of three chrome etch tanks controlled by a composite mesh pad. Stack ID SVS-P11.	2-12-1985	FGS-1
EUPS-6	This emission group consists of one conditioner tank controlled by a packed bed scrubber. Stack ID SVS-P15.	2-12-1985\ 9-15-2003	FGS-1
EUPS-7	This emission group consists of three chrome plate tanks, one purification tank and one evaporator/reclaim unit controlled by a composite mesh pad. Stack ID SVS-P10.	2-12-1985	FGS-1 FGNESHAPN
EUCHROME4	One decorative chrome electroplating tank with fume suppressant and three stage composite mesh pad scrubber. Stack ID SVCR4.	8-12-2011	FGNESHAPN
EUPS-8	This emission group consists of one nitric strip tank controlled by a packed bed scrubber. Stack ID SVS-P16.	2-12-1985	FGS-1
EUPS-9	This emission group consists of one chrome strip tank. Stack ID SVS-P17.	2-12-1985	FGS-1
EUPS-10	This emission group consists of two bright nickel tanks, five semi-bright nickel tanks, one micro porous nickel tank and one micro crack nickel tank. Stack ID SVS-P19.	2-12-1985/ 10-6-2017	FGS-1
EUCOLDCLEANERS	This emission group consists of miscellaneous cold cleaners installed after 1979.	NA	FGCOLDCLEANERS
EUALNWGENSET	One 40 BHP, natural gas fueled, 4 stroke rich burn engine designed to provide 20kW of emergency standby electrical power.	2001	FGEMERGENCYRICE- SI
EUBOILER1-S	2.676 MMBtu/hr natural gas-fired boiler.	2-12-1985	FGBOILERS
EUBOILER2-S	4.18 MMBtu/hr natural gas-fired boiler.	2-12-1985	FGBOILERS
	5.25 MMBtu/hr natural gas-fired boller.	8-27-1998	
EUBUILERZ-N	5.25 WIVIBLU/III HALURAI gas-Tired boller.	0-27-1990	FGBUILERS

EUCHROME4 EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

One decorative chrome electroplating tank with fume suppressant and three stage composite mesh pad scrubber system for control located at Airlane South.

Flexible Group ID: FGNESHAPN

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Fume suppressant and three stage composite mesh pad scrubber system

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	Total chromium	0.01 mg/dscm ¹	Continuous	EUCHROME4	SC V.2 & VI.1 through VI.5	R 336.1225 R 336.1901
2.	Total chromium	0.0005 pph ¹	Hourly	EUCHROME4	SC V.2 & VI.1 through VI.5	R 336.1225 R 336.1901

3. The affected source shall be in compliance with the applicable emission limits in 40 CFR 63.342 during tank operation and during periods of startup and shutdown.² (40 CFR 63.342(b)(1))

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

Material	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. At all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction, owners or operators shall operate and maintain any affected source, including associated monitoring equipment, in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practices, consistent with the operation and maintenance plan.² (40 CFR 63.342(f)(1)(i))
- The permittee shall implement an approved Operation and Maintenance plan. The plan shall contain all information required by 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(i), which includes the following:² (R 336.1225, R 336.1901, 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A & N)
 - a. Operation and maintenance criteria for EUCHROME4, add-on control device(s), and for the process and control device(s) monitoring equipment as well as a standardized checklist to document the operation and maintenance of the equipment;
 - b. The work practice standards for the add-on control device(s) and monitoring equipment;
 - c. Procedures to be followed to ensure that equipment or process malfunctions due to poor maintenance or other preventable conditions do not occur; and
 - d. A systematic procedure for identifying process equipment, add-on control device(s) and monitoring equipment malfunctions and for implementing corrective actions to address such malfunctions.

- The permittee shall not operate EUCHROME4 unless the chemical fume suppressant containing a wetting agent is applied in quantities and at a frequency to ensure the surface tension of the tank does not exceed, at any time during operation, 45 dynes/cm (3.1x10-3 pound-force per foot) as measured by a tensiometer.² (R 336.1225, R 336.1901, R 336.1910)
- 4. If the operation and maintenance plan fails to address or inadequately addresses an event that meets the characteristics of a malfunction at the time the plan is initially developed, the owner or operator shall revise the operation and maintenance plan within 45 days after such an event occurs. The revised plan shall include procedures for operating and maintaining the process equipment, or monitoring equipment during similar malfunction events, and a program for corrective action for such events. If the plan is revised, the permittee shall keep previous versions of the plan available upon request, for a period of 5 years after each revision to the plan.² (40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(ii) and (v))
- 5. If actions taken by the permittee during periods of malfunction are inconsistent with the procedures specified in the operation and maintenance plan, the permittee shall record the actions taken for that event and shall report by phone such actions within 2 working days after commencing actions inconsistent with the plan. This report shall be followed by a letter within 7 working days after the end of the event.² (40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(iv))

IV. <u>DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)</u>

- The permittee shall not operate EUCHROME4 unless the composite mesh pad system is installed, maintained, and operated in a satisfactory manner.² (R 336.1225, R 336.1910, R 336.1901, 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A & N)
- 2. The permittee shall equip and maintain the composite mesh pad system with a differential pressure monitoring device.² (R 336.1225, R 336.1901, R 336.1910, 40 CFR 63.343(c))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- Except as provided in 40 CFR 63.343(b)(2) and (3), the permittee shall conduct an initial performance test as required by 40 CFR 63.7, using the test methods identified in 40 CFR 63.344(c), and shall establish site-specific operating parameters that correspond to compliance with the applicable emission limitation.² (40 CFR 63.343(b) & (c))
- 2. Within every 24 months from the date of completion of the most recent stack test thereafter, the permittee shall verify total chromium emission rates from EUCHROME4, by testing at owner's expense, in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A and N. The permittee shall notify the AQD District Supervisor in writing of the intention to conduct a performance test, at least 60 calendar days before the test is scheduled to begin, in accordance with 40 CFR 63.347(d). Stack testing procedures and the location of stack testing ports shall be in accordance with the applicable federal Reference Methods, 40 CFR Part 63, Appendix A. No less than 60 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing. Verification of emission rates includes the submittal of a complete report of the test results to the AQD within 90 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.1225, R 336.1901, R 336.2001, R 336.2002, R 336.2003, 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A & N)

See Appendix 5

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. The permittee shall monitor the surface tension of EUCHROME4 once every four (4) hours of tank operation for the first 40 hours of tank operation. If there are no exceedances during the first 40 hours of tank operation, then surface tension measurements may be conducted once every eight (8) hours of tank operation for the next 40 hours of tank operation. If there are no exceedances during the 40 hours of tank operation when surface tension measurements are being conducted every eight (8) hours, then surface tension measurements may be conducted once every eight (8) hours, then surface tension measurements may be conducted once every eight (8) hours, then surface tension measurements may be conducted once every 40 hours of tank operation on an ongoing basis, until an exceedance occurs. Once an exceedance occurs as indicated through surface tension monitoring, the original monitoring schedule of once every four hours must be resumed and the subsequent decrease in frequency shall follow the schedule as laid out above. The minimum frequency of monitoring allowed is once every 40 hours of tank operation. The surface tension shall be monitored with a tensiometer.² (R 336.1225, R 336.1901, R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall perform inspections of the composite mesh pad (CMP) system as follows:² (R 336.1225, R 336.1901, R 336.1910, 40 CFR Part 63.342(f), 40 CFR 63.343(c)(1)or(3))
 - a. Determine pressure drop across the CMP system on a daily basis. If the pressure drop across the control varies by more than ± 2 inches of water gauge, from the pressure drop determined during compliance testing, the permittee shall document the variation, and review the operation and maintenance procedures. The permittee shall document any corrective action.
 - b. Visually inspect the CMP system, on a quarterly basis, to ensure there is proper drainage, no chromic acid build up on the pads, and no evidence of chemical attack on the structural integrity of the control device.
 - c. Visually inspect the back portion of the mesh pad closest to the fan, on a quarterly basis, to ensure there is no breakthrough of chromic acid mist.
 - d. Visually inspect ductwork from tanks to the CMP system, on a quarterly basis, to ensure there are no leaks.
 - e. Perform wash-down of composite mesh pads in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.
- 3. The permittee shall monitor emissions and operating and maintenance information in accordance with the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants as specified in 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A and N. The permittee shall keep records of all source emissions and operating and maintenance information.² (40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A & N)
- 4. The permittee shall maintain records of inspections required to comply with applicable work practice standards of 40 CFR 63.342(f). Each inspection record shall identify the device inspected, the date, approximate time of inspection, and a brief description of the working condition of the device during the inspection. The permittee shall also record any actions taken to correct the deficiencies found during the inspection.² (R 336.1225, R 336.1901, R 336.1910, 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A & N)
- 5. The permittee shall keep records of the surface tension of EUCHROME4, the amount of chemical fume suppressant added to EUCHROME4 and the date and time of each addition.¹ (R 336.1225, R 336.1901)

VII. <u>REPORTING</u>

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))

- 4. The permittee shall notify the Department if a change in land use occurs for property classified as industrial or as a public roadway, where this classification was relied upon to demonstrate compliance with Rule 225(1). The permittee shall submit the notification to the AQD District Supervisor, within 30 days of the actual land use change. Within 60 days of the land use change, the permittee shall submit to the AQD District Supervisor a plan for complying with the requirements of Rule 225(1). The plan shall require compliance with Rule 225(1) no later than one year after the due date of the plan submittal.¹ (R 336.1225(4))
- 5. The permittee shall submit two complete test protocols to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor for approval at least 30 days prior to the anticipated test date. The protocol shall describe the test method(s) and the maximum routine operating conditions, including targets for key operational parameters associated with air pollution control equipment to be monitored and recorded during testing.² (R 336.2001(3))
- 6. The permittee shall notify the AQD Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and the District Supervisor no less than 7 days prior to the anticipated test date.² (R 336.2001(4))
- The permittee shall submit two complete test reports of the test results to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor, within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

The exhaust gases from the stacks listed in the table below shall be discharged unobstructed vertically upwards to the ambient air unless otherwise noted:

Stack & Vent ID	Maximum Exhaust Dimensions (inches)	Minimum Height Above Ground (feet)	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1. SVCR4	40 ¹	61 ¹	R 336.1225, R 336.1901

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

Footnotes:

¹This condition is state-only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

²This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

D. FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

Part D outlines the terms and conditions that apply to more than one emission unit. The permittee is subject to the special conditions for each flexible group in addition to the General Conditions in Part A and any other terms and conditions contained in this ROP.

The permittee shall comply with all specific details in the special conditions and the underlying applicable requirements cited. If a specific condition type does not apply, NA (not applicable) has been used in the table. If there are no special conditions that apply to more than one emission unit, this section will be left blank.

FLEXIBLE GROUP SUMMARY TABLE

The descriptions provided below are for informational purposes and do not constitute enforceable conditions.

Flexible Group ID	Flexible Group Description	Associated Emission Unit IDs
FGN-1	North Plater - electroplating of copper, nickel and decorative chrome on plastic parts.	EUPN-1, EUPN-2, EUPN-3, EUPN-4, EUPN-5, EUPN-6, EUPN-7, EUPN-8, EUPN-9, EUPN-10, EUPN-11, EUPN-12, EUPN-13, EUPN-14
FGS-1	South Plater - electroplating of copper, nickel and decorative chrome on plastic parts.	EUPS-1, EUPS-2, EUPS-3, EUPS-4, EUPS-5, EUPS-6, EUPS-7, EUPS-8, EUPS-9 EUPS-10
FGNESHAPN	Each existing chromium electroplating or chromium anodizing tank at facilities performing hard chromium electroplating, decorative chromium electroplating, or chromium anodizing as defined in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart N, 40 CFR 63.341. Affected sources include equipment covered by other permits, grandfathered equipment, and exempt equipment.	EUPN-12, EUPS-7, EUCHROME4
FGEMERGENCYRICE-SI	Existing emergency spark ignition engines < 500 HP, located at a major source, that commenced construction or reconstruction before June 12, 2006.	EUALNWGENSET
FGBOILERS	Requirements for existing Gas 1, (Natural Gas only) for existing Boilers and Process Heaters at major sources of Hazardous Air Pollutants per 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD.	EUBOILER1-S, EUBOILER2-S, EUBOILER1-N, EUBOILER2-N
FGCOLDCLEANERS	Any cold cleaner that is grandfathered or exempt from Rule 201 pursuant to Rule 278, 278a and Rule 281(2)(h) or Rule 285(2)(r)(iv). Existing cold cleaners were placed into operation prior to July 1, 1979. New cold cleaners were placed into operation on or after July 1, 1979.	EUCOLDCLEANERS

FGN-1 FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

North Plater - electroplating of copper, nickel and decorative chrome on plastic parts.

Emission Units: EUPN-1, EUPN-2, EUPN-3, EUPN-4, EUPN-5, EUPN-6, EUPN-7, EUPN-8, EUPN-9, EUPN-10, EUPN-11, EUPN-12, EUPN-13, EUPN-14

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Two packed bed scrubbers with mist eliminators, fume suppressant and two composite mesh pad systems.

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	Total nickel	0.0598 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-1, EUPN-2, EUPN-3, EUPN-6	SC IV.2 & V.1	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
2.	Total chromium	0.00037 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-10	SC IV.1 & V.2	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
3.	Total chromium	0.00043 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-12	SC IV.1 & V.2	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
4.	Formaldehyde	2.72 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-6	SC V.1	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
5.	Methanol	8.25 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-6	SC V.1	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
6.	Ammonia	0.132 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-6	SC III.5	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
7.	1,3-dichloro-2- propanol	0.84 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-11	SC V.1	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
8.	Nitric acid	1.23 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-13	SC III.4 & IV.2	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
9.	VOC	540 lbs per year²	12-month rolling time period as determined at the end of each calendar month	EUPN-14	SC VI.3 & VI.4	R 336.1702(a)
10.	Opacity	0% except for uncombined water vapor ²	NA	All process tanks	SC V.3 & VI.2	R 336.1331(1)(c) R 336.1301

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

1. The permittee shall not operate the three chromium etch tanks from EUPN-10 unless a chemical fume suppressant with a wetting agent and/or composite mesh pad scrubber is used, installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)

- The permittee shall not operate the electroless copper and/or electroless nickel tanks from EUPN-6 unless the packed bed scrubber with a mist eliminator is installed, maintained and operating in a satisfactory manner.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)
- 3. The permittee shall not operate the three decorative chromium plating tanks and a chromium purification tank from EUPN-12 unless a chemical fume suppressant with a wetting agent is present in the three decorative chromium plating tanks in combination with a composite mesh pad scrubber installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)
- The permittee shall not operate the chromium and nitric acid strip tanks EUPN-13 unless the packed bed scrubber with a mist eliminator is installed, maintained and operating in a satisfactory manner.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)
- 5. The permittee shall implement an approved Operation and Maintenance Plan/Malfunction Abatement Plan.² (R 336.1911, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)i))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- 1. Each composite mesh pad system on EUPN-10 and EUPN-12 shall be equipped with a differential pressure monitoring device.² (R 336.1224, R 336.225, R 336.901, R 336.1910)
- 2. Each packed bed scrubber with mist eliminator on EUPN-6 and EUPN-13 shall be equipped with a liquid flow monitoring device.² (R 336.1224, R 336.225, R 336.901, R 336.1910)

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- Within every 48 months from the date of completion of the most recent stack test thereafter, the permittee shall verify formaldehyde, methanol, nickel and 1,3 dichloro-2-propanol emission rates from FGN-1 by testing at owner's expense, in accordance with Department requirements and applicable federal Reference Methods found in Appendix 5. No less than 60 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing. Verification of emission rates includes the submittal of a complete report of the test results to the AQD within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)
- Within every 24 months from the date of completion of the most recent stack test thereafter, the permittee shall verify chromium emission rates from FGN-1 by testing at owner's expense, in accordance with Department requirements and applicable federal Reference Methods found in Appendix 5. No less than 60 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing. Verification of emission rates includes the submittal of a complete report of the test results to the AQD within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004, R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.344, 40 CFR 63.347(f))
- 3. The permittee shall perform weekly non-certified visual observations during operation.² (R 336.1301, R 336.1331(c))

See Appendix 5

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. The permittee shall conduct monitoring and maintain records of actions taken as outlined in and pursuant to the approved Operation and Maintenance Plan/Malfunction Abatement Plan.² (40 CFR 63.346, R 336.1911)
- 2. The permittee shall maintain records of the weekly non-certified visual opacity observation performed to determine compliance with applicable opacity limitations.² (R 336.1301, R 336.1331(1)(c))

- 3. The permittee shall keep a record, in a manner acceptable to the AQD District Supervisor, of the composition of all additives used in EUPN-14 and of the maximum concentration in the tank of all components of the additives that are VOCs.² (R 336.1702(a))
- 4. The permittee shall calculate the VOC emission rate from EUPN-14 monthly using aeration calculation methods such as Equation 4 from AP-42 chapter 12.20 or an alternate method acceptable to the AQD District Supervisor. The permittee shall keep all records on file at the facility and make them available to the Department upon request.² (**R 336.1702(a)**)

VII. <u>REPORTING</u>

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. The permittee shall submit two complete test protocols to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor for approval at least 30 days prior to the anticipated test date. The protocol shall describe the test method(s) and the maximum routine operating conditions, including targets for key operational parameters associated with air pollution control equipment to be monitored and recorded during testing.² (R 336.2001(3))
- 5. The permittee shall notify the AQD Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and the District Supervisor no less than 7 days prior to the anticipated test date.² (**R 336.2001(4**))
- The permittee shall submit two complete test reports of the test results to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor, within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

The exhaust gases from the stacks listed in the table below shall be discharged unobstructed vertically upwards to the ambient air unless otherwise noted:

Stack & Vent ID	Maximum Exhaust Dimensions	Minimum Height Above Ground (feet)	Underlying Applicable Requirements
	(inches)		
1. SVN-1A	60 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
2. SVN-1B	40 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
3. SVN-2	50 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
4. SVN-3	52 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
5. SVN-4	32 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
6. SVN-5	42 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
7. SVN-6	46 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
8. SVN-7	18 ²	80 ²	R 336.1225
			40 CFR 52.21(c)&(d)
9. SVN-8	40 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

 The permittee shall notify the Department if a change in land use occurs for property classified as industrial or as a public roadway, where this classification was relied upon to demonstrate compliance with Rule 225(1). The notification shall be submitted to the District Supervisor, Air Quality Division, within 30 days of the actual land use change. Within 60 days of the land use change, the applicant shall submit to the District Supervisor a plan for complying with the requirements of Rule 225(1). The plan shall require compliance with Rule 225(1) not later than one year after the due date of the plan submittal.¹ (R 336.1225(4))

Footnotes:

¹This condition is state-only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b). ²This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

FGS-1 FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

South Plater - electroplating of copper, nickel and decorative chrome on plastic parts.

Emission Units: EUPS-1, EUPS-2, EUPS-3, EUPS-4, EUPS-5, EUPS-6, EUPS-7, EUPS-8, EUPS-9, EUPS-10

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Three packed bed scrubbers, Fume suppressant, Two composite mesh pad systems.

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	Total nickel	0.0063 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPS-10	SC V.1	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
2.	Total chromium	0.000542 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPS-5	SC III.1, IV.1 & V.2	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
3.	Total chromium	0.000489 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPS-7	SC III.3, IV.1 & V.2	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
4.	Formaldehyde	0.6458 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPS-3	SC V.1	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
5.	Methanol	9.12 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPS-3	SC V.1	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
6.	Ammonia	0.145 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPS-3	SC III.5	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
7.	1,3-dichloro-2- propanol	0.84 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPS-6	SC III.6, IV.2 & V.1	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
8.	Nitric acid	0.11 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPS-8	SC IV.2 & V.3	R 336.1224 R 336.1225
9.	Opacity	0%, except for uncombined water vapor ²	NA	All process tanks	SC V.3	R 336.1331(1)(c) R 336.1301

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

Material	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. The permittee shall not operate the three chromium etch tanks from EUPS-5 unless a chemical fume suppressant with a wetting agent and/or composite mesh pad scrubber is used, installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall not operate the electroless copper and/or electroless nickel tanks from EUPS-3 unless the packed bed scrubber is installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)
- 3. The permittee shall not operate the three decorative chromium plating tanks and a chromium purification tank from EUPS-7 unless a chemical fume suppressant with a wetting agent is present in the three decorative chromium plating tanks in combination with a composite mesh pad scrubber that is installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1910, 40 CFR 63.342)
- 4. The permittee shall not operate the nitric acid strip tanks EUPS-8 unless the packed bed scrubber with a mist eliminator is installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1225, R 336.1901, R 336.1910)
- 5. The permittee shall implement the approved Operation and Maintenance Plan/Malfunction Abatement Plan.² (R 336.1911, 40 CFR 63.342)
- 6. The permittee shall not operate the conditioner tank EUPS-6 unless the packed bed scrubber with a mist eliminator is installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- 1. Each composite mesh pad system on EUPS-5 and EUPS-7 shall be equipped with a differential pressure monitoring device.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1225, R 336.1901, R 336.1910)
- 2. Each packed bed scrubber on EUPS-3, EUPS-6 and EUPS-8 shall be equipped with a liquid flow monitoring device. (R 336.1213(3))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- Within every 48 months from the date of completion of the most recent stack test thereafter, the permittee shall verify formaldehyde, methanol, nickel and 1,3 dichloro-2-propanol emission rates from FGS-1 by testing at owner's expense, in accordance with Department requirements and applicable federal Reference Methods found in Appendix 5. No less than 60 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing. Verification of emission rates includes the submittal of a complete report of the test results to the AQD within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)
- Within every 24 months from the date of completion of the most recent stack test thereafter, the permittee shall verify chromium emission rates from FGS-1 by testing at owner's expense, in accordance with Department requirements and applicable federal Reference Methods found in Appendix 5. No less than 60 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing. Verification of emission rates includes the submittal of a complete report of the test results to the AQD within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004 R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.344, 40 CFR 63.347(f))
- 3. Upon the request of the AQD District Supervisor, the permittee shall verify nitric acid emission rates from FGS-1 by testing at the owner's expense, in accordance with Department requirements and applicable federal Reference Methods found in Appendix 5. No less than 60 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing. Verification of emission rates includes the submittal of a complete report of the test results to the AQD within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.1224, R 336.1225, R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)
- 4. The permittee shall perform weekly non-certified visual observations during operation. (R 336.1213(3))

See Appendix 5

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

1. The permittee shall conduct monitoring and maintain records of actions taken as outlined in and pursuant to the approved Operation and Maintenance Plan/Malfunction Abatement Plan. (R 336.1213(3))

VII. <u>REPORTING</u>

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. The permittee shall submit two complete test protocols to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor for approval at least 30 days prior to the anticipated test date. The protocol shall describe the test method(s) and the maximum routine operating conditions, including targets for key operational parameters associated with air pollution control equipment to be monitored and recorded during testing.² (R 336.12001(3)
- 5. The permittee shall notify the AQD Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and the District Supervisor no less than 7 days prior to the anticipated test date.² (**R 336.2001(4**))
- The permittee shall submit two complete test reports of the test results to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor, within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

The exhaust gases from the stacks listed in the table below shall be discharged unobstructed vertically upwards to the ambient air unless otherwise noted:

Stack & Vent ID	Maximum Exhaust Dimensions (inches)	Minimum Height Above Ground (feet)	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1. SVS-P10	40 ¹	48.6 ¹	R 336.1225
2. SVS-P11	41 ¹	51.1 ¹	R 336.1225
3. SVS-P12	37 equivalent ¹	41.4 ¹	R 336.1225
4. SVS-P13	41 ¹	46.3 ¹	R 336.1225
5. SVS-P14	39 equivalent ¹	40.5 ¹	R 336.1225
6. SVS-P15	10 ¹	70 ¹	R 336.1225
7. SVS-P16	30.5 ¹	45.2 ¹	R 336.1225
8. SVS-P17	24 equivalent ¹	40.5 ¹	R 336.1225
9. SVS-P18	50 equivalent ¹	42.1 ¹	R 336.1225
10. SVS-P19	51.6 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

<u>Footnotes</u>: ¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

FGNESHAPN FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Each existing chromium electroplating or chromium anodizing tank at facilities performing hard chromium electroplating, decorative chromium electroplating, or chromium anodizing as defined in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart N 40 CFR 63.341. Affected sources include equipment covered by other permits, grandfathered equipment, and exempt equipment.

Emission Units: EUPN-12, EUPS-7, EUCHROME4

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Composite mesh pad scrubber.

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/	Equipment	Monitoring/	Underlying Applicable
		Operating Scenario		Testing Method	Requirements
1. Hexavalent	0.007	Continuous	Each Decorative	SC V.2 & VI.1	40 CFR 63.342(d)(1)
Chromium	milligram per		Chrome	through VI.3	
	dry standard		Electroplating		
	cubic meter.		Tank(s)		
	corrected to				
	70°F and				
	29.92 inches				
	Hg				

- 2. The affected source shall be in compliance with the applicable emission limits in 40 CFR 63.342 during tank operation and during periods of startup and shutdown. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(b)(1))
- 3. The permittee shall comply with the emission limitations in 40 CFR 63.342 according to the compliance dates specified in 40 CFR 63.343(a). (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.343(c))

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

Material	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. The permittee shall not operate EUPN-12, EU-PS-7 or EUCHROME4 unless the composite mesh pad systems are installed, maintained, and operated in a satisfactory manner. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f))
- 2. At all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction, owners or operators shall operate and maintain any affected source, including associated monitoring equipment, in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practices, consistent with the Preventative Maintenance/Operational Maintenance/Malfunction Abatement Plan. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(1)(i))
- 3. Malfunctions shall be corrected as soon as practical after their occurrence in accordance with the Preventative Maintenance/Operational Maintenance/Malfunction Abatement Plan. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(1)(ii))

- 4. The permittee shall implement an approved Operation and Maintenance Plan. Any changes made to the Operation and Maintenance Plan must have approval by the AQD District Supervisor prior to implementation. The plan, which shall be kept on site and made available upon request, shall include, at a minimum, the following elements: (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3))
 - a. Operation and maintenance criteria for the decorative chrome plating tank(s), the add-on control device(s), and for the process and control device(s) monitoring equipment as well as a standardized checklist to document the operation and maintenance of the equipment; (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(i)(A))
 - b. The work practice standards for the add-on control device(s) and monitoring equipment as identified in Table 1 of 40 CFR 63.342. (**R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(i)(B)**)
 - c. Procedures to be followed to ensure that equipment or process malfunctions due to poor maintenance or other preventable conditions do not occur. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(i)(D))
 - A systematic procedure for identifying process equipment, add-on control device(s) and monitoring equipment malfunctions and for implementing corrective actions to address such malfunctions. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(i)(E))
 - e. The plan shall include housekeeping procedures, as specified in Table 2 of 40 CFR 63.342. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(i)(F))
- 5. If the Operation and Maintenance Plan fails to address or inadequately addresses an event that meets the characteristics of a malfunction at the time the plan is initially developed, the owner or operator shall revise the Operation and Maintenance Plan within 45 days after such an event occurs. The revised plan shall include procedures for operating and maintaining the process equipment, or monitoring equipment during similar malfunction events, and a program for corrective action for such events. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(ii) & (v))
- 6. If actions taken by the permittee during periods of malfunction are inconsistent with the procedures specified in the Operation and Maintenance Plan, the permittee shall record the actions taken for that event and shall report by phone such actions within 2 working days after commencing actions inconsistent with the plan. This report shall be followed by a letter within 7 working days after the end of the event. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(iv))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- 1. The permittee shall equip and maintain each composite mesh pad system with a differential pressure monitoring device. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.343(c), 40 CFR 63.344(d)(5))
- The composite mesh pad system differential pressure on EUPN-12, EUPS-7 and EUCHROME4 shall be operated within ± 2 inches of water column of the pressure drop value established during performance testing. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.343(c)(1)(ii))

V. <u>TESTING/SAMPLING</u>

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

1. The permittee shall perform all applicable performance testing as outlined in 40 CFR 63.344. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.344)

See Appendix 5

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. The permittee shall perform inspections of the composite mesh pad (CMP) system as follows: (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f), 40 CFR 63.343(c))
 - a. Monitor and record the pressure drop across the CMP system on a daily basis. If the pressure drop across the control varies by more than ± 2 inches of water gauge, from the pressure drop determined during compliance testing, the permittee shall document the variation, and review the operation and maintenance procedures. The permittee shall document any corrective action. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.343(c))
 - b. Visually inspect the CMP system, on a quarterly basis, to ensure there is proper drainage, no chromic acid build up on the pads, and no evidence of chemical attack on the structural integrity of the control device. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f), Table 1)
 - c. Visually inspect the back portion of the mesh pad closest to the fan, on a quarterly basis, to ensure there is no breakthrough of chromic acid mist. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f), Table 1)
 - d. Visually inspect ductwork from tanks to the CMP system, on a quarterly basis, to ensure there are no leaks. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f), Table 1)
 - e. Perform wash-down of composite mesh pads in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.342(f), Table 1)
- 2. The permittee shall keep at a minimum, the following records required by 40 CFR 63.346, as of the applicable compliance date, in the format and timeframes outlined in 40 CFR 63.346.
 - a. Records of inspections required to comply with applicable work practice standards of 40 CFR 63.342(f), identifying the device inspected, the date, approximate time of inspection, and a brief description of the working condition of the device during the inspection, including a record of any actions taken to correct the deficiencies found during the inspection. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(1))
 - b. Records of all maintenance performed on the decorative chrome electroplating process tank(s), control device, and monitoring equipment. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(2))
 - c. Records of the occurrence, duration, and cause (if known) of each malfunction of the decorative chrome electroplating process, control device, and monitoring equipment. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(3))
 - d. Records of actions taken during periods of malfunction to minimize emissions in accordance with 40 CFR 63.342(a)(1), including corrective actions to restore malfunctioning process and air pollution control and monitoring equipment to its normal or usual manner of operation. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(4))
 - e. Other records, which may take the form of checklists, necessary to demonstrate consistency with provisions of the Operation and Maintenance Plan required by 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3). (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(5))
 - f. Test reports documenting results of all performance tests. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(6))
 - g. All measurements necessary to determine the conditions of performance tests, including measurements necessary to determine compliance with the special compliance procedures of 40 CFR 63.344(e). (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(7))
 - h. Records of monitoring data required by 40 CFR 63.343(c) that are used to demonstrate compliance with the standard including the date and time the data are collected. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(8))
 - A record of the specific identification (i.e., the date and time of commencement and completion) of each period of excess emissions, as indicated by monitoring data, that occurs during malfunction of the decorative chrome electroplating process, add-on air pollution control, or monitoring equipment. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(9))
 - j. A record of the specific identification (i.e., the date and time of commencement and completion) of each period of excess emissions, as indicated by monitoring data, that occurs during periods other than malfunction of the decorative chrome electroplating process, add-on air pollution control, or monitoring equipment. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(10))
 - k. A record of the total decorative chrome electroplating tank(s) operating time. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(11))

- I. All documentation supporting the notification and reports required by 40 CFR 63.9, 40 CFR 63.10, and 40 CFR 63.347. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.346(b)(16))
- 3. The permittee shall keep records of all applicable emission information, monitoring, operating and maintenance information, and recordkeeping to comply with 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A and N for each decorative chrome electroplating tank at the facility. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.343, 40 CFR 63.346)

See Appendix 4

VII. <u>REPORTING</u>

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. The permittee shall document all performance test results in complete test reports that contain the information required by 40 CFR 63.344(a)(1) through (9). (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.344)
- 5. The permittee shall fulfill all applicable reporting requirements outlined in 40 CFR 63.347 and the General Provisions to 40 CFR Part 63, according to the applicability of Subpart A, as identified in Table 1 of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart N. The notifications and reports include:
 - a. Initial notifications. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.347(c))
 - b. Notification of performance test. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.347(d)
 - c. Notification of compliance status. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.347(e))
 - d. Reports of performance test results. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.347(f))
 - e. A report of ongoing compliance status containing information required in 40 CFR 63.347(g)(3). This report shall be submitted semiannually if no exceedances occurred during the reporting period and quarterly if exceedances occurred in the reporting period. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.347(g))
- The permittee is subject to the preconstruction review requirements of 40 CFR 63.5(a), (b)(1), (b)(5), (b)(6) and (f)(1) as well as the provisions of 40 CFR 63.345, for a new or reconstructed source. (R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.345)
- 7. The permittee shall submit two complete test protocols to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor for approval at least 30 days prior to the anticipated test date. The protocol shall describe the test method(s) and the maximum routine operating conditions, including targets for key operational parameters associated with air pollution control equipment to be monitored and recorded during testing.² (R 336.2001(3))
- 8. The permittee shall notify the AQD Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and the District Supervisor no less than 7 days prior to the anticipated test date.² (R 336.2001(4))
- The permittee shall submit two complete test reports of the test results to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor, within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

The exhaust gases from the stacks listed in the table below shall be discharged unobstructed vertically upwards to the ambient air unless otherwise noted:

Stack & Vent ID	Maximum Exhaust Dimensions (inches)	Minimum Height Above Ground (feet)	Underlying Applicable Requirements
NA	NA	NA	NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

1. The permittee shall comply with all applicable provisions of the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, as specified in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A and Subpart N. (40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A and N)

See FGN-1, FGS-1, and EUCHROME4 for additional applicable requirements for the decorative chrome plating tanks.

Footnotes:

- ¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).
- ² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

FGEMERGENCYRICE-SI EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Existing emergency spark ignition engines < 500 HP, located at a major source, that commenced construction or reconstruction before June 12, 2006.

Emission Unit: EUALNWGENSET

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

NA

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

NA

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. EUALNWGENSET shall be installed, maintained, and operated in a satisfactory manner. The permittee shall meet the following work practice standards as specified in 40 CFR 63.6602 and Table 2c, Item 1. The permittee may petition the Administrator pursuant to the requirements of 40 CFR 63.6(g) for alternative work practices.
 - a. Change oil and filter every 500 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first, except as allowed in SC III.4.
 - b. Inspect the spark plugs every 1,000 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first and replace as necessary; and
 - c. Inspect all hoses and belts every 500 hours of operation or annually, whichever comes first, and replace as necessary.

If the affected source is being operated during an emergency and it is not possible to shut down the engine to perform the work practice standards on the schedule required, the work practice standard can be delayed until the emergency is over. The work practice should be performed as soon as practicable after the emergency has ended or the unacceptable risk under Federal, State or local law has been abated. Sources must report any failure to perform the work practice on the schedule required and the Federal, State or local law or which the risk was deemed unacceptable. **(40 CFR 63.6602, 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ, Table 2c, Item 1)**

- 2. The permittee must be in compliance with the emission limitations and operating limitations in Subpart ZZZZ that apply to the source at all times. (40 CFR 63.6605(a))
- 3. The permittee, at all times, must operate and maintain any affected source, including associated air pollution control equipment and monitoring equipment, in a manner consistent with safety and good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions. The general duty to minimize emissions does not require you to make any further efforts to reduce emissions if levels required by this standard have been achieved. Determination of whether such operation and maintenance procedures are being used will be based on information available to the Administrator which may include, but is not limited to, monitoring results, review of operation and maintenance procedures, review of operation and maintenance records, and inspection of the source. (40 CFR 63.6605(b))

- 4. The permittee may utilize an oil analysis program in order to extend the specified oil change requirement. The oil analysis must be performed at the same frequency as oil changes are required in Table 2c. (40 CFR 63.6625(j))
- 5. If the analytical results of the oil analysis program for emergency stationary engines indicate any of the following limits are exceeded, the permittee shall change the oil within 2 days of receiving the results of the analysis. If the engine is not in operation when the results of the analysis are received, the permittee shall change the oil within 2 days or before commencing operation, whichever is later. **(40 CFR 63.6625(i))**
 - a. Total Acid Number increases by more than 2.0 milligrams of potassium hydroxide (KOH) per gram from when the oil was new.
 - b. Viscosity of the oil has changed by more than 20 percent from the viscosity of the oil when new.
 - c. Percent water content (by volume) is greater than 0.5.
- The permittee shall maintain and operate the stationary RICE per the manufacturer's emission related written instructions or develop a maintenance plan which must provide for the maintenance and operation of the engine in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions. (40 CFR 63.6625(e), 40 CFR 63.6640(a), 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ, Table 6, Item 9)
- 7. The permittee shall minimize the time spent at idle during startup and minimize the startup time of the stationary RICE to a period needed for appropriate and safe loading of the engine, not to exceed 30 minutes, after which time the emission standards applicable to all times other than startup apply. **(40 CFR 63.6625(h))**
- 8. The permittee shall not exceed 100 hours per year for maintenance checks and readiness testing. The permittee may petition the Administrator for approval of additional hours to be used for maintenance checks and readiness testing, but a petition is not required if the owner or operator maintains records indicating that Federal, State, or local standards require maintenance and testing of emergency RICE beyond 100 hours per year. (40 CFR 63.6640(f)(1)(ii))
- 9. The permittee may operate the EUALNWGENSET up to 50 hours per year for non-emergency situations but those hours are to be counted towards the 100 hours per year for maintenance and readiness testing. These 50 hours per year for non-emergency situations cannot be used for peak-shaving or to generate income for a facility to supply power to an electric grid or otherwise supply power as part of a financial arrangement with another entity. Up to 15 hours per year can be used as part of a demand response program. (40 CFR 63.6640(f)(1)(iii))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

1. The permittee shall equip and maintain EUALNWGENSET with a non-resettable hour meter to track the number of operating hours. (40 CFR 63.6625(f))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

1. If using the oil analysis program, the permittee shall at a minimum analyze the oil for the Total Acid Number, Viscosity, and percent water. (40 CFR 63.6625(i))

See Appendix 5

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. The permittee shall keep the following records:
 - a. Records of the occurrence and duration of each malfunction of operation or the air pollution control monitoring equipment. (40 CFR 63.6655(a)(2), 40 CFR 63.6660)

- b. Records of actions taken during periods of malfunction to minimize emissions, including corrective actions to restore malfunctioning process and air pollution control and monitoring equipment to its normal or usual manner of operation. (40 CFR 63.6655(a)(5), 40 CFR 63.6660)
- c. Records to demonstrate continuous compliance with operating limitations in SC III.1. (40 CFR 63.6655(d), 40 CFR 63.6660)
- d. Records of the maintenance conducted to demonstrate the engine and after-treatment control device (if any) were operated and maintained according to the manufacturer's emission related written instructions or developed maintenance plan. (40 CFR 63.6655(e), 40 CFR 63.6660)
- e. Records of hours of operation recorded through the non-resettable hour meter. The permittee shall document how many hours were spent during emergency operation including what classified the operation as emergency and how many hours were spent during non-emergency operation. If the engines were used for demand response operation, the permittee shall keep records of the notification of the emergency situation and the time the engine was operated as part of demand response. (40 CFR 63.6655(f), 40 CFR 63.6660)

VII. <u>REPORTING</u>

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

 The permittee shall comply with all applicable provisions of the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, as specified in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A and Subpart ZZZZ, for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines by the initial compliance date of October 19, 2013. (40 CFR 63.6595(a)(1), 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A and ZZZZ)

FGBOILERS FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Requirements for existing Gas 1, (Natural Gas only) for existing Boilers and Process Heaters at major sources of Hazardous Air Pollutants per 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD.

Emission Units: EUBOILER1-S, EUBOILER2-S, EUBOILER1-N, EUBOILER2-N

The collection at a major source of all existing industrial, commercial, and institutional boilers and process heaters within the units designed to burn gas 1 fuel subcategory as defined in 40 CFR 63.7575. At the time of permit renewal:

Less than 5 MMBtu/hr	EUBOILER1-S, EUBBOILER2-S
Equal to or greater than	EUBOILER1-N, EUBOILER2-N
5 MMBtu/hr and less	
than 10 MMBtu/hr	
Equal to or greater than	N/A
10 MMBtu/hr	

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

NA

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

NA

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

1. The permittee shall only burn natural gas. (40 CFR 63.7499(I))

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. The permittee must meet the tune-up and Energy Assessment work practice standards for each applicable boiler or process heater at the source. (40 CFR 63.7500(a)(1), 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, Table 3, Nos. 1-4)
- 2. The permittee must operate and maintain affected sources in a manner consistent with safety and good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions. Determination of whether such operation and maintenance procedures are being used will be based on information available to the Administrator that may include, but is not limited to, monitoring results, review of operation and maintenance procedures, review of operation and procedures, review of operation and procedures, review of operation an
- 3. The permittee may obtain approval from the Administrator to use an alternative to the work practice standards noted in SC III.1 and SC III.2. (40 CFR 63.7500(b))
- 4. The permittee must:
 - a. Complete a tune-up every 5 years (61 months) for boilers/process heaters less than or equal to 5 million Btu per hour. (40 CFR 63.7500(e), 40 CFR 63.7515(d))
 - b. Complete a tune-up every 2 years (25 months) for boilers greater than 5 million Btu per hour and less than 10 million Btu per hour. (40 CFR 63.7500(e), 40 CFR 63.7515(d))
 - c. Complete a tune-up annually (13 months) for boilers greater than 10 million Btu per hour. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10), 40 CFR 63.7515(d))

- d. Conduct the tune-up within 30 calendar days of startup, if the unit is not operating on the required date for a tune-up. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(13))
- e. Follow the procedures described in SC IX 4.a through SC IX 4.f for all initial and subsequent tune ups. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10), 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, Table 3)
- f. Complete the Initial tune ups on all affected units no later than January 31, 2016, except as provided in 40 CFR 63.7510(j) and 40 CFR 63.7540(a)(13).
- 5. The permittee must complete the one-time energy assessment no later than January 31, 2016. (40 CFR 63.7510(e))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

NA

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- The permittee must keep a copy of each notification and report submitted to comply with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, including all documentation supporting any Initial Notification or Notification of Compliance Status or semiannual compliance report that the permittee submitted, according to the requirements in 40 CFR 63.10(b)(2)(xiv). (40 CFR 63.7555(a)(1))
- The permittee must keep each record on site, or they must be accessible from on-site (for example, through a computer network), for at least 2 years after the date of each occurrence, measurement, maintenance, corrective action, report, or record. The permittee can keep the records off site for the remaining 3 years. (40 CFR 63.7560(a), (b), & (c))

VII. <u>REPORTING</u>

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. The permittee must submit a Notification of Compliance Status that includes each boiler or process heater before the close of business on the 60th day following the completion of the initial compliance demonstrations for all boiler or process heaters at the facility. The Notification of Compliance Status report must contain the following information. (40 CFR 63.7545(e))
 - a. A description of the affected unit(s) including identification of which subcategories the unit is in, the design heat input capacity of the unit, a description of the add-on controls used on the unit to comply with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, description of the fuel(s) burned. (40 CFR 63.7545(e)(1))
 - b. Certification(s) of compliance, as applicable, and signed by a responsible official: (40 CFR 63.7545(e)(8))
 - i. "This facility complies with the required initial tune-up according to the procedures in 40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(i) through (vi)." (40 CFR 63.7545(e)(8)(i))

- ii. "This facility has had an energy assessment performed according to 40 CFR 63.7530(e)." (40 CFR 63.7545(e)(8)(ii))
- 5. The permittee must submit boiler tune-up compliance reports. The first compliance report shall cover the period January 31, 2016 thru December of the year in which the tune up was completed and must be postmarked or submitted no later than March 15th of the reporting year that immediately follows the year in which the tune-up was completed. Subsequent compliance reports must be postmarked or submitted by March 15th of the year following the tune-up and must cover the applicable 1, 2, or 5 year period starting from January 1 of the year following the previous tune-up to December 31 (of the latest tune-up year). Compliance reports must be submitted to the EPA using the Compliance and Emissions Data Reporting Interface (CEDRI) which is accessed through the EPA's Central Data Exchange (CDX) (www.epa.gov/cdx). A hardcopy of the compliance report shall be submitted to the state. At the discretion of the Administrator, the permittee must submit these reports, in the format specified by the Administrator. (40 CFR 63.7550(b), 40 CFR 63.10(a)(5), 40 CFR 63.7550(h)(3))
- 6. The permittee must include the following information in the compliance report. (40 CFR 63.7550(c), 40 CFR 63.7550(c)(1))
 - a. Company and Facility name and address. (40 CFR 63.7550(c)(5)(i))
 - b. Process unit information, emissions limitations, and operating parameter limitations. (40 CFR 63.7550(c)(5)(ii))
 - c. Date of report and beginning and ending dates of the reporting period. (40 CFR 63.7550(c)(5)(iii))
 - d. The total operating time during the reporting period. (40 CFR 63.7550(c)(5)(iv))
 - e. Include the date of the most recent tune-up for each unit. Include the date of the most recent burner inspection if it was not done annually, biennially, or on a 5-year period and was delayed until the next scheduled or unscheduled unit shutdown. (40 CFR 63.7550(c)(5)(xiv))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

- 1. The permittee must comply with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD no later than January 31, 2016, for existing boilers and process heaters, unless an extension has been granted per 40 CFR 63.6(i). (40 CFR 63.7495(b))
- 2. The permittee must be in compliance with the applicable work practice standards. (40 CFR 63.7505(a))
- For affected sources (as defined in 40 CFR 63.7490) that have not operated since the previous compliance demonstration and more than one year has passed since the previous compliance demonstration, the permittee must complete a subsequent tune-up within 30 days of startup by following the procedures described in SC IX 4.a through 4.f. (40 CFR 63.7515(g))
- 4. The permittee must demonstrate continuous compliance with the tune-up requirement by completing the following: (40 CFR 63.7540(a))
 - a. Inspect the burner, and clean or replace any components of the burner as necessary (the permittee may delay the burner inspection until the next scheduled unit shutdown). At units where entry into a piece of process equipment or into a storage vessel is required to complete the tune-up inspections, inspections are required only during planned entries into the storage vessel or process equipment. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(i))
 - Inspect the flame pattern, as applicable, and adjust the burner as necessary to optimize the flame pattern. The adjustment should be consistent with the manufacturer's specifications, if available. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(ii))

- c. Inspect the system controlling the air-to-fuel ratio, as applicable, and ensure that it is correctly calibrated and functioning properly (the permittee may delay the inspection until the next scheduled unit shutdown). Units that produce electricity for sale may delay the inspection until the first outage, not to exceed 36 months from the previous inspection. **(40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(iii))**
- d. Optimize total emissions of CO. This optimization should be consistent with the manufacturer's specifications, if available, and with any NO_x requirement to which the unit is subject. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(iv))
- e. Measure the concentrations in the effluent stream of CO in parts per million, by volume, and oxygen in volume percent, before and after the adjustments are made (measurements may be either on a dry or wet basis, as long as it is the same basis before and after the adjustments are made). Measurements may be taken using a portable CO analyzer. **(40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(v))**
- f. Maintain on-site and submit, if requested by the Administrator, the most recent periodic report containing the information as listed below. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(vi))
 - i. The concentrations of CO in the effluent stream in parts per million by volume, and oxygen in volume percent, measured at high fire or typical operating load, before and after the tune-up of the boiler or process heater. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(vi)(A))
 - ii. A description of any corrective actions taken as a part of the tune-up. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(vi)(B))
 - iii. The type and amount of fuel used over the 12 months prior to the tune-up, but only if the unit was physically and legally capable of using more than one type of fuel during that period. Units sharing a fuel meter may estimate the fuel used by each unit. **(40 CFR 63.7540(a)(10)(vi)(C))**
- 5. If the boiler or process heater has a heat input capacity of less than or equal to 5 million Btu per hour, the permittee may delay the burner inspection specified in SC IX 4.a until the next scheduled or unscheduled unit shutdown, but the permittee must inspect each burner at least once every 72 months. (40 CFR 63.7540(a)(12))

Footnotes:

¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

FGCOLDCLEANERS FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Any cold cleaner that is grandfathered or exempt from Rule 201 pursuant to Rule 278, 278a and Rule 281(2)(h) or Rule 285(2)(r)(iv). Existing cold cleaners were placed into operation prior to July 1, 1979. New cold cleaners were placed into operation on or after July 1, 1979.

Emission Unit: EUCOLDCLEANERS

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

NA

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

NA

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

1. The permittee shall not use cleaning solvents containing more than five percent by weight of the following halogenated compounds: methylene chloride, perchloroethylene, trichloroethylene, 1,1,1-trichloroethane, carbon tetrachloride, chloroform, or any combination thereof. (**R 336.1213(2**))

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. Cleaned parts shall be drained for no less than 15 seconds or until dripping ceases. (R 336.1611(2)(b), R 336.1707(3)(b))
- 2. The permittee shall perform routine maintenance on each cold cleaner as recommended by the manufacturer. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. <u>DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)</u>

- 1. The cold cleaner must meet one of the following design requirements:
 - a. The air/vapor interface of the cold cleaner is no more than ten square feet. (R 336.1281(2)(h))
 - b. The cold cleaner is used for cleaning metal parts and the emissions are released to the general in-plant environment. (R 336.1285((2)r)(iv))
- 2. The cold cleaner shall be equipped with a device for draining cleaned parts. (R 336.1611(2)(b), R 336.1707(3)(b))
- 3. All new and existing cold cleaners shall be equipped with a cover and the cover shall be closed whenever parts are not being handled in the cold cleaner. (R 336.1611(2)(a), R 336.1707(3)(a))
- 4. The cover of a new cold cleaner shall be mechanically assisted if the Reid vapor pressure of the solvent is more than 0.3 psia or if the solvent is agitated or heated. (R 336.1707(3)(a))
- 5. If the Reid vapor pressure of any solvent used in a new cold cleaner is greater than 0.6 psia; or, if any solvent used in a new cold cleaner is heated above 120 degrees Fahrenheit, then the cold cleaner must comply with at least one of the following provisions:

- a. The cold cleaner must be designed such that the ratio of the freeboard height to the width of the cleaner is equal to or greater than 0.7. (**R 336.1707(2)(a)**)
- b. The solvent bath must be covered with water if the solvent is insoluble and has a specific gravity of more than 1.0. (**R 336.1707(2)(b**))
- c. The cold cleaner must be controlled by a carbon adsorption system, condensation system, or other method of equivalent control approved by the AQD. (R 336.1707(2)(c))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. For each new cold cleaner in which the solvent is heated, the solvent temperature shall be monitored and recorded at least once each calendar week during routine operating conditions. (R 336.1213(3))
- 2. The permittee shall maintain the following information on file for each cold cleaner: (R 336.1213(3))
 - a. A serial number, model number, or other unique identifier for each cold cleaner.
 - b. The date the unit was installed, manufactured or that it commenced operation.
 - c. The air/vapor interface area for any unit claimed to be exempt under Rule 281(2)(h).
 - d. The applicable Rule 201 exemption.
 - e. The Reid vapor pressure of each solvent used.
 - f. If applicable, the option chosen to comply with Rule 707(2).
- 3. The permittee shall maintain written operating procedures for each cold cleaner. These written procedures shall be posted in an accessible, conspicuous location near each cold cleaner. (R 336.1611(3), R 336.1707(4))
- 4. As noted in Rule 611(2)(c) and Rule 707(3)(c), if applicable, an initial demonstration that the waste solvent is a safety hazard shall be made prior to storage in non-closed containers. If the waste solvent is a safety hazard and is stored in non-closed containers, verification that the waste solvent is disposed of so that not more than 20 percent, by weight, is allowed to evaporate into the atmosphere shall be made on a monthly basis. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.1611(2)(c), R 336.1707(3)(c))

VII. <u>REPORTING</u>

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))

See Appendix 8

ROP No: MI-ROP-N0895-2018a Expiration Date: January 17, 2023 PTI No: MI-PTI-N0895-2018a

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

ROP No: MI-ROP-N0895-2018a Expiration Date: January 17, 2023 PTI No: MI-PTI-N0895-2018a

E. NON-APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS

At the time of the ROP issuance, the AQD has determined that no non-applicable requirements have been identified for incorporation into the permit shield provision set forth in the General Conditions in Part A pursuant to Rule 213(6)(a)(ii).

APPENDICES

Appendix 1. Acronyms and Abbreviations

	Common Aeronyme		Pollutant / Massurament Abbreviations
	Air Quality Division	oofm	Actual aubia fact par minute
AQD	All Quality Division		Dritish Thermoel Unit
BACT	Best Available Control Technology	BIU	British Thermal Unit
CAA			Degrees Celsius
CAM	Compliance Assurance Monitoring	CO	Carbon Monoxide
CEM	Continuous Emission Monitoring	CO ₂ e	Carbon Dioxide Equivalent
CEMS	Continuous Emission Monitoring System	dscf	Dry standard cubic foot
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations	dscm	Dry standard cubic meter
COM	Continuous Opacity Monitoring	°F	Degrees Fahrenheit
Department/	Michigan Department of Environment,	gr	Grains
department	Great Lakes, and Energy	HAP	Hazardous Air Pollutant
EGLE	Michigan Department of Environment,	Hg	Mercury
	Great Lakes, and Energy	hr	Hour
EU	Emission Unit	HP	Horsepower
FG	Flexible Group	H_2S	Hydrogen Sulfide
GACS	Gallons of Applied Coating Solids	kW	Kilowatt
GC	General Condition	lb	Pound
GHGs	Greenhouse Gases	m	Meter
HVLP	High Volume Low Pressure*	mg	Milligram
ID	Identification	mm	Millimeter
IRSI	Initial Risk Screening Level	MM	Million
ITSI	Initial Threshold Screening Level	MW	Megawatts
	Lowest Achievable Emission Rate	NMOC	Non-methane Organic Compounds
MACT	Maximum Achievable Control Technology	NO.	Ovides of Nitrogen
MAERS	Michigan Air Emissions Reporting System	na	Nanogram
	Malfunction Abstament Plan		Particulate Matter
MAP	Material Safety Data Sheet	PM10	Particulate Matter equal to or less than 10
	Not Applicable	1 10110	microns in diameter
	Not Applicable National Ambient Air Quality Standards	DM2 5	Particulate Matter equal to or less than 2.5
NAAQO	National Ambient All Quality Standards	FIVIZ.J	microns in diameter
NESHAP	National Emission Standard for Hazardous	pph	Pounds per hour
	Air Pollutants	ppm	Parts per million
NSPS	New Source Performance Standards	ppmv	Parts per million by volume
NSR	New Source Review	ppmw	Parts per million by weight
PS	Performance Specification	%	Percent
PSD	Prevention of Significant Deterioration	psia	Pounds per square inch absolute
PTE	Permanent Total Enclosure	nsia	Pounds per square inch dauge
PTI	Permit to Install	scf	Standard cubic feet
RACT	Reasonable Available Control Technology	500	Seconds
ROP	Renewable Operating Permit	SO.	Sulfur Dioxide
80	Special Condition		Toxia Air Contominant
		TAC	
SUR	Selective Catalylic Reduction	Temp	
SNUK	Selective INON-Catalytic Reduction	THC	
SKN		тру	ions per year
	I OXICITY Equivalence Quotient	μg	wicrogram
USEPA/EPA	United States Environmental Protection	μm	Micrometer or Micron
	Agency	VOC	Volatile Organic Compounds
VE	Visible Emissions	yr	Year

*For HVLP applicators, the pressure measured at the gun air cap shall not exceed 10 psig.

Appendix 2. Schedule of Compliance

The permittee certified in the ROP application that this stationary source is in compliance with all applicable requirements and the permittee shall continue to comply with all terms and conditions of this ROP. A Schedule of Compliance is not required. (R 336.1213(4)(a), R 336.1119(a)(ii))

Appendix 3. Monitoring Requirements

Specific monitoring requirement procedures, methods or specifications are detailed in Part A or the appropriate Source-Wide, Emission Unit and/or Flexible Group Special Conditions. Therefore, this appendix is not applicable.

Appendix 4. Recordkeeping

The permittee shall use the following approved formats and procedures for the recordkeeping requirements referenced in FGNESHAPN. Alternative formats must be approved by the AQD District Supervisor.

FGNESHAPN

The permittee shall use the Daily Process Operations Record Form. Alternate formats must meet the provisions of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart N and be approved by the AQD District Supervisor.

EGLE

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY, AIR QUALITY DIVISION

DAILY PROCESS OPERATIONS RECORD

This information is required by Article II, Part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to provide this information may result in penalties and/or imprisonment.

<u>Applicable Rule:</u> 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart N--National Emission Standards for Chromium Emissions from Hard and Decorative Chromium Electroplating and Chromium Anodizing Tanks.

All affected facilities must maintain records of the amount of time each affected tank is in operation. If an affected facility is using a nonresettable ampere-hr meter to demonstrate that it is a small, hard chromium electroplating facility, records of the actual rectifier usage (amp-hrs) must be maintained. Records must be maintained on file for five years and made available upon request for inspection by the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy.

1. Plant Name and Location

Tank ID #	Date	Hours of Operation

THIS IS A MASTER COPY. PLEASE MAKE COPIES FROM THIS MASTER COPY.

Appendix 5. Testing Procedures

The permittee shall use the following federal Reference Test Methods to measure the pollutant emissions for the applicable requirements referenced in FGN-1, FGS-1, EUCHROME4 and FGNESHAPN. Any alternatives to the following test methods shall be approved by the Air Quality Division or the USEPA where applicable.

- 1. Formaldehyde Method 316.
- 2. Total Chromium Reference Method 29.
- 3. Hexavalent Chromium Reference Method 306
- 4. Nickel Reference Method 29.
- 5. 1,3 Dichloro-2-propanol Reference Method 18.

Appendix 6. Permits to Install

The following table lists any PTIs issued or ROP revision applications received since the effective date of the previously issued ROP No. MI-ROP-N0895-2012. Those ROP revision applications that are being issued concurrently with this ROP renewal are identified by an asterisk (*). Those revision applications not listed with an asterisk were processed prior to this renewal.

Source-Wide PTI No MI-PTI-N0895-2012 is being reissued as Source-Wide PTI No. MI-PTI-N0895-2018.

Permit to Install Number	ROP Revision Application Number	Description of Equipment or Change	Corresponding Emission Unit(s) or Flexible Group(s)
120-17	NA	Addition of a stack for ventilation of nickel emissions.	FGS-1

The following table lists the ROP amendments or modifications issued after the effective date of ROP No. MI-ROP-P0374-2017.

Permit to	ROP Revision	Description of Equipment or Change	Corresponding
Install	Application		Emission Unit(s) or
Number	Number/Issuance Date		Flexible Group(s)
59-19	201900113 / September 27, 2019	The Minor Modification was to incorporate PTI No. 59-19. This PTI was for an additional conditioner (pre-etch) tank in the north plater flexible group, FGN-1 as its Airlane North facility in Kentwood. It is possible this new tank will allow them to remove an existing tank, EUPN-11, but they won't know until they've operated with the new tank for a while. The PTI application was not required to go through the Public Participation process.	EUPN-14 FGN-1

Appendix 7. Emission Calculations

There are no specific emission calculations to be used for this ROP. Therefore, this appendix is not applicable.

Appendix 8. Reporting

A. Annual, Semiannual, and Deviation Certification Reporting

The permittee shall use the EGLE, AQD, Report Certification form (EQP 5736) and EGLE, AQD, Deviation Report form (EQP 5737) for the annual, semiannual and deviation certification reporting referenced in the Reporting Section of the Source-Wide, Emission Unit and/or Flexible Group Special Conditions. Alternative formats must meet the provisions of Rule 213(4)(c) and Rule 213(3)(c)(i), respectively, and be approved by the AQD District Supervisor.

B. Other Reporting

Specific reporting requirement formats and procedures are detailed in Part A or the appropriate Source-Wide, Emission Unit and/or Flexible Group Special Conditions. Therefore, Part B of this appendix is not applicable.

PERMIT TO INSTALL

Table of Contents

COMMON ACRONYMS	2
POLLUTANT / MEASUREMENT ABBREVIATIONS	3
GENERAL CONDITIONS	4
EMISSION UNIT SPECIAL CONDITIONS	6
EMISSION UNIT SUMMARY TABLE	6
FLEXIBLE GROUP SPECIAL CONDITIONS	7
FLEXIBLE GROUP SUMMARY TABLE	7
FGN-1	8
APPENDIX A: Testing Procedures	11

COMMON ACRONYMS

AQD	Air Quality Division
BACT	Best Available Control Technology
CAA	Clean Air Act
CAM	Compliance Assurance Monitoring
CEMS	Continuous Emission Monitoring System
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
COMS	Continuous Opacity Monitoring System
Department/department	Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
EU	Emission Unit
FG	Flexible Group
GACS	Gallons of Applied Coating Solids
GC	General Condition
GHGs	Greenhouse Gases
HVI P	High Volume Low Pressure*
	Identification
IRSI	Initial Risk Screening Level
ITSI	Initial Threshold Screening Level
	Lowest Achievable Emission Rate
MACT	Maximum Achievable Control Technology
MAEDS	Michigan Air Emissions Poporting System
MAD	Molfunction Abatament Plan
	Manufiction Abatement of Environmental Quality
	Meterial Sofaty Data Shaat
	Material Salety Data Sheet
	Not Applicable
	National Ambient Air Quality Standards
	National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Poliutants
	New Source Performance Standards
NSK	New Source Review
PS	Performance Specification
PSD	Prevention of Significant Deterioration
PIE	Permanent Total Enclosure
PII	Permit to Install
RACI	Reasonable Available Control Technology
ROP	Renewable Operating Permit
SC	Special Condition
SCR	Selective Catalytic Reduction
SNCR	Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction
SRN	State Registration Number
TBD	To Be Determined
TEQ	Toxicity Equivalence Quotient
USEPA/EPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency
VE	Visible Emissions

POLLUTANT / MEASUREMENT ABBREVIATIONS

acfm	Actual cubic feet per minute
BTU	British Thermal Unit
°C	Degrees Celsius
СО	Carbon Monoxide
CO ₂ e	Carbon Dioxide Equivalent
dscf	Drv standard cubic foot
dscm	Dry standard cubic meter
°F	Degrees Fahrenheit
ar	Grains
HAP	Hazardous Air Pollutant
На	Mercury
hr	Hour
HP	Horsepower
H ₂ S	Hydrogen Sulfide
kW/	Kilowatt
lb	Pound
m	Meter
ma	Millioram
mm	Millimeter
ΜΝΑ	Million
M\\/	Menawatts
NMOC	Non-Methane Organic Compounds
	Oxides of Nitrogen
	Nanogram
PM	Particulate Matter
	Particulate Matter equal to or loss than 10 microns in diameter
DM2 5	Particulate Matter equal to or less than 75 microns in diameter
nnh	Pounds per bour
ppn	Porte per million
ppm	Parts per million hy volume
ppmw	Parts per million by volume
ppinw	Parts per minion by weight Deunde nor aquero inch obsoluto
psia	Pounda per square inch absolute
psig	Stondard aubia fact
	Scanda
	Seconds Sulfur Diovido
	Toxic Air Contaminant
Tamp	
tov	
ιμy	Niorogram
hð	Wildingram Micromotor or Micron
	Vilotometer of Million
VUC	Volatile Organic Compounds
уг	rear

GENERAL CONDITIONS

- The process or process equipment covered by this permit shall not be reconstructed, relocated, or modified, unless a Permit to Install authorizing such action is issued by the Department, except to the extent such action is exempt from the Permit to Install requirements by any applicable rule. (R 336.1201(1))
- 2. If the installation, construction, reconstruction, relocation, or modification of the equipment for which this permit has been approved has not commenced within 18 months, or has been interrupted for 18 months, this permit shall become void unless otherwise authorized by the Department. Furthermore, the permittee or the designated authorized agent shall notify the Department via the Supervisor, Permit Section, Air Quality Division, Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 30260, Lansing, Michigan 48909-7760, if it is decided not to pursue the installation, construction, reconstruction, relocation, or modification of the equipment allowed by this Permit to Install. (R 336.1201(4))
- 3. If this Permit to Install is issued for a process or process equipment located at a stationary source that is not subject to the Renewable Operating Permit program requirements pursuant to Rule 210 (R 336.1210), operation of the process or process equipment is allowed by this permit if the equipment performs in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit to Install. (R 336.1201(6)(b))
- 4. The Department may, after notice and opportunity for a hearing, revoke this Permit to Install if evidence indicates the process or process equipment is not performing in accordance with the terms and conditions of this permit or is violating the Department's rules or the Clean Air Act. (R 336.1201(8), Section 5510 of Act 451, PA 1994)
- 5. The terms and conditions of this Permit to Install shall apply to any person or legal entity that now or hereafter owns or operates the process or process equipment at the location authorized by this Permit to Install. If the new owner or operator submits a written request to the Department pursuant to Rule 219 and the Department approves the request, this permit will be amended to reflect the change of ownership or operational control. The request must include all of the information required by subrules (1)(a), (b), and (c) of Rule 219 and shall be sent to the District Supervisor, Air Quality Division, Michigan Department of Environmental Quality. (R 336.1219)
- 6. Operation of this equipment shall not result in the emission of an air contaminant which causes injurious effects to human health or safety, animal life, plant life of significant economic value, or property, or which causes unreasonable interference with the comfortable enjoyment of life and property. (R 336.1901)
- 7. The permittee shall provide notice of an abnormal condition, start-up, shutdown, or malfunction that results in emissions of a hazardous or toxic air pollutant which continue for more than one hour in excess of any applicable standard or limitation, or emissions of any air contaminant continuing for more than two hours in excess of an applicable standard or limitation, as required in Rule 912, to the Department. The notice shall be provided not later than two business days after start-up, shutdown, or discovery of the abnormal condition or malfunction. Written reports, if required, must be filed with the Department within 10 days after the start-up or shutdown occurred, within 10 days after the abnormal condition or malfunction, whichever is first. The written reports shall include all of the information required in Rule 912(5). (R 336.1912)
- 8. Approval of this permit does not exempt the permittee from complying with any future applicable requirements which may be promulgated under Part 55 of 1994 PA 451, as amended or the Federal Clean Air Act.
- 9. Approval of this permit does not obviate the necessity of obtaining such permits or approvals from other units of government as required by law.

- 10. Operation of this equipment may be subject to other requirements of Part 55 of 1994 PA 451, as amended and the rules promulgated thereunder.
- 11. Except as provided in subrules (2) and (3) or unless the special conditions of the Permit to Install include an alternate opacity limit established pursuant to subrule (4) of Rule 301, the permittee shall not cause or permit to be discharged into the outer air from a process or process equipment a visible emission of density greater than the most stringent of the following. The grading of visible emissions shall be determined in accordance with Rule 303 (R 336.1303). **(R 336.1301)**
 - a) A six-minute average of 20 percent opacity, except for one six-minute average per hour of not more than 27 percent opacity.
 - b) A visible emission limit specified by an applicable federal new source performance standard.
 - c) A visible emission limit specified as a condition of this Permit to Install.
- 12. Collected air contaminants shall be removed as necessary to maintain the equipment at the required operating efficiency. The collection and disposal of air contaminants shall be performed in a manner so as to minimize the introduction of contaminants to the outer air. Transport of collected air contaminants in Priority I and II areas requires the use of material handling methods specified in Rule 370(2). (R 336.1370)
- The Department may require the permittee to conduct acceptable performance tests, at the permittee's expense, in accordance with Rule 1001 and Rule 1003, under any of the conditions listed in Rule 1001. (R 336.2001)

EMISSION UNIT SPECIAL CONDITIONS

EMISSION UNIT SUMMARY TABLE

The descriptions provided below are for informational purposes and do not constitute enforceable conditions.

	Emission Unit Description (Including Process Equipment & Control		
Emission Unit ID	Device(s))	Modification Date	Flexible Group ID
EUPN-1	This emission group consists of four semi- bright nickel tanks. Stack ID SVN-1A.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-2	This emission group consists of three bright nickel tanks. Stack ID SVN-1B.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-3	This emission group consists of one microporous nickel and one chrome pre-dip tank. Stack ID SVN-1B.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-4	This emission group consists of four copper- acid tanks. Stack ID SVN-3.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-5	This emission group consists of one copper- strike tank. Stack ID SVN-3.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-6	This emission group consists of one electroless copper/electroless nickel tank controlled by a packed bed scrubber with mist eliminator. Stack ID SVN-4	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-7	This emission group consists of one accelerator tank. Stack ID SVN-5.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-8	This emission group consists of one catalyst tank. Stack ID SVN-5.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-9	This emission group consists of one neutralizer tank. Stack ID SVN-5.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-10	This emission group consists of three chrome etch tanks, one etch regeneration unit and one evaporator/reclaim unit controlled by a composite mesh pad scrubber. Stack ID SVN- 6.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-11	This emission group consists of one conditioner tank. Stack ID SVN-7.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-12	This emission group consists of three chrome plate tanks and one purification tank and one evaporator/reclaim unit controlled by a composite mesh pad. Stack ID SVN-2.	8-27-1998	FGN-1 FGNESHAPN
EUPN-13	This emission group consists of one chrome strip tank and one nitric strip tank controlled by a packed bed scrubber with mist eliminator. Stack ID SVN-8.	8-27-1998	FGN-1
EUPN-14	This emission unit consists of one pre-etch tank. Stack ID SVN-7.	6-19-2019	FGN-1

Changes to the equipment described in this table are subject to the requirements of R 336.1201, except as allowed by R 336.1278 to R 336.1291.

-

FLEXIBLE GROUP SPECIAL CONDITIONS

FLEXIBLE GROUP SUMMARY TABLE

The descriptions provided below are for informational purposes and do not constitute enforceable conditions.

		Associated
Flexible Group ID	Flexible Group Description	Emission Unit IDs
FGN-1	North Plater - electroplating of copper, nickel and	EUPN-1, EUPN-2, EUPN-3,
	decorative chrome on plastic parts.	EUPN-4, EUPN-5, EUPN-6,
		EUPN-7, EUPN-8, EUPN-9,
		EUPN-10, EUPN-11, EUPN-12,
		EUPN-13, EUPN-14

FGN-1 FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

North Plater - electroplating of copper, nickel and decorative chrome on plastic parts.

Emission Units: EUPN-1, EUPN-2, EUPN-3, EUPN-4, EUPN-5, EUPN-6, EUPN-7, EUPN-8, EUPN-9, EUPN-10, EUPN-11, EUPN-12, EUPN-13, EUPN-14

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Two packed bed scrubbers with mist eliminators, fume suppressant and two composite mesh pad systems.

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

					Monitoring /	Underlying
			Time Period / Operating		Testing	Applicable
	Pollutant	Limit	Scenario	Equipment	Method	Requirements
1.	Total nickel	0.0598 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-1, EUPN-2,	SC IV.2 &	R 336.1224
			-	EUPN-3, EUPN-6	V.1	R 336.1225
2.	Total	0.00037 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-10	SC IV.1 &	R 336.1224
	chromium		-		V.2	R 336.1225
3.	Total	0.00043 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-12	SC IV.1 &	R 336.1224
	chromium				V.2	R 336.1225
4.	Formaldehyde	2.72 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-6	SC V.1	R 336.1224
	-		_			R 336.1225
5.	Methanol	8.25 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-6	SC V.1	R 336.1224
						R 336.1225
6.	Ammonia	0.132 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-6	SC III.5	R 336.1224
						R 336.1225
7.	1,3-dichloro-2-	0.84 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-11	SC V.1	R 336.1224
	propanol					R 336.1225
8.	Nitric acid	1.23 pph ¹	Hourly	EUPN-13	SC III.4 &	R 336.1224
					IV.2	R 336.1225
9.	VOC	540 lbs per	12-month rolling time period	EUPN-14	SC VI.3, VI.4	R 336.1702(a)
		year	as determined at the end of			
			each calendar month			
10.	Opacity	0% except for	NA	All process tanks	SC V.3	R 336.1331(1)(c)
		uncombined				R 336.1301
		water vapor				

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. The permittee shall not operate the three chromium etch tanks from EUPN-10 unless a chemical fume suppressant with a wetting agent and/or composite mesh pad scrubber is used, installed and operating properly. (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)
- The permittee shall not operate the electroless copper and/or electroless nickel tanks from EUPN-6 unless the packed bed scrubber with a mist eliminator is installed, maintained and operating in a satisfactory manner. (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)

- 3. The permittee shall not operate the three decorative chromium plating tanks and a chromium purification tank from EUPN-12 unless a chemical fume suppressant with a wetting agent is present in the three decorative chromium plating tanks in combination with a composite mesh pad scrubber installed and operating properly. (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)
- The permittee shall not operate the chromium and nitric acid strip tanks EUPN-13 unless the packed bed scrubber with a mist eliminator is installed, maintained and operating in a satisfactory manner. (R 336.1224, R 336.1910)
- 5. The permittee shall implement an approved Operation and Maintenance Plan/Malfunction Abatement Plan. (R 336.1911, 40 CFR 63.342(f)(3)(i))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- 1. Each composite mesh pad system on EUPN-10 and EUPN-12 shall be equipped with a differential pressure monitoring device. (R 336.1224, R 336.225, R 336.901, R 336.1910)
- 2. Each packed bed scrubber with mist eliminator on EUPN-6 and EUPN-13 shall be equipped with a liquid flow monitoring device. (R 336.1224, R 336.225, R 336.901, R 336.1910)

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1201(3))

- Within every 48 months from the date of completion of the most recent stack test thereafter, the permittee shall verify formaldehyde, methanol, nickel and 1,3 dichloro-2-propanol emission rates from FGN-1 by testing at owner's expense, in accordance with Department requirements and applicable federal Reference Methods found in Appendix A. No less than 60 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing. Verification of emission rates includes the submittal of a complete report of the test results to the AQD within 60 days following the last date of the test. (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)
- 2. Within every 24 months from the date of completion of the most recent stack test thereafter, the permittee shall verify chromium emission rates from FGN-1 by testing at owner's expense, in accordance with Department requirements and applicable federal Reference Methods found in Appendix A. No less than 60 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing. Verification of emission rates includes the submittal of a complete report of the test results to the AQD within 60 days following the last date of the test. (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004, R 336.1941, 40 CFR 63.344, 40 CFR 63.347(f))
- 3. The permittee shall perform weekly non-certified visual observations during operation. (R 336.1301, R 336.1331(c))

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1201(3))

- 1. The permittee shall conduct monitoring and maintain records of actions taken as outlined in and pursuant to the approved Operation and Maintenance Plan/Malfunction Abatement Plan. (40 CFR 63.346, R 336.1911)
- 2. The permittee shall maintain records of the weekly non-certified visual opacity observation performed to determine compliance with applicable opacity limitations. (R 336.1301, R 336.1331(1)(c))
- 3. The permittee shall keep a record, in a manner acceptable to the AQD District Supervisor, of the composition of all additives used in EUPN-14 and of the maximum concentration in the tank of all components of the additives that are VOCs. (R 336.1702(a))
- 4. The permittee shall calculate the VOC emission rate from EUPN-14 monthly using aeration calculation methods such as Equation 4 from AP-42 chapter 12.20 or an alternate method acceptable to the AQD

District Supervisor. The permittee shall keep all records on file at the facility and make them available to the Department upon request. (R 336.1702(a))

VII. <u>REPORTING</u>

- The permittee shall submit two complete test protocols to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor for approval at least 30 days prior to the anticipated test date. The protocol shall describe the test method(s) and the maximum routine operating conditions, including targets for key operational parameters associated with air pollution control equipment to be monitored and recorded during testing. (R 336.2001(3))
- 2. The permittee shall notify the AQD Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and the District Supervisor no less than 7 days prior to the anticipated test date. (R 336.2001(4))
- The permittee shall submit two complete test reports of the test results to the AQD, one to the Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and one to the District Supervisor, within 60 days following the last date of the test. (R 336.2001(5))

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

The exhaust gases from the stacks listed in the table below shall be discharged unobstructed vertically upwards to the ambient air unless otherwise noted:

		Maximum Exhaust Diameter / Dimensions	Minimum Height Above Ground	Underlying Applicable Requirements
	Stack & Vent ID	(inches)	(feet)	
1.	SVN-1A	60 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
2.	SVN-1B	40 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
3.	SVN-2	50 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
4.	SVN-3	52 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
5.	SVN-4	32 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
6.	SVN-5	42 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
7.	SVN-6	46 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225
8.	SVN-7	18	80	R 336.1225,
				40 CFR 52.21(c)&(d)
9.	SVN-8	40 ¹	60 ¹	R 336.1225

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

 The permittee shall notify the Department if a change in land use occurs for property classified as industrial or as a public roadway, where this classification was relied upon to demonstrate compliance with Rule 225(1). The notification shall be submitted to the District Supervisor, Air Quality Division, within 30 days of the actual land use change. Within 60 days of the land use change, the applicant shall submit to the District Supervisor a plan for complying with the requirements of Rule 225(1). The plan shall require compliance with Rule 225(1) not later than one year after the due date of the plan submittal.¹ (R 336.1225(4))

Footnotes:

¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

APPENDIX A: Testing Procedures

The permittee shall use the following federal Reference Test Methods to measure the pollutant emissions for the applicable requirements referenced in FGN-1, FGS-1, EUCHROME4 and FGNESHAPN. Any alternatives to the following test methods shall be approved by the Air Quality Division or the USEPA where applicable.

- 1. Formaldehyde Method 316.
- 2. Total Chromium Reference Method 29.
- 3. Hexavalent Chromium Reference Method 306.
- 4. Nickel Reference Method 29.
- 5. 1,3 Dichloro-2-propanol Reference Method 18.

ENVIRONMENTAL MALFUNCTION ABATEMENT – OPERATION & MAINTENANCE PLAN

For

LACKS Enterprises, Inc.

AIRLANE NORTH PLATER

4260 Airlane S.E.

Kentwood, Michigan

Michigan SRN # N0895

Permit: MI-ROP-N0895-2012

Revised: January 19, 2017

Revised: October 11, 2018

Revised: September 29, 2020

Revised: October 29, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTSPageFacility Wide Requirements2Chrome Etch and Chrome Plate Tanks3Conditioner, Electroless Copper, and Strip Tanks5Neutralizer, Catalyst, Accelerator, Copper Plate and Nickel Plate Tanks6
LACKS – AIRLANE NORTH PLATER

Facility Wide

<u>Maintenance records</u> will consist primarily of the computer based preventive maintenance system. Additional maintenance records may include PM Work Orders, Maintenance Work Requests, checklists, purchase orders, and other documents which describe the maintenance tasks and corrective actions. All records will be maintained for a minimum of five (5) years.

All <u>Malfunction Alarms</u> will be activated immediately within the building and will consist of both audible and visual alarms and will be recorded by the automated system. The alarm will also appear in the plating laboratory on a system monitor.

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Opacity	Non-certified visual observation	Once each week during operation	Other than uncombined water vapor, there must be no visible emission (0% opacity) from a stack.	Record the following observations for each stack: date, time, visible emissions observed (yes/no).
Condition of the automated alarm system	Test each alarm for proper operation	Each quarter	The sensor sends an alarm signal and the alarm is recorded.	The test results and corrective actions will be recorded in preventive maintenance computer program.

Malfunction Corrective Actions:

If visible emissions are observed, notify the plating supervisor to initiate immediate shut down of the affected process and begin an inspection of the system. Prepare a Maintenance Work Request (MWR) to perform a determination of the cause of the visible emissions and initiate the necessary corrective actions. Record the date, time, duration of the malfunction, who was notified and the corrective actions on the MWR.

Malfunction Reporting Requirements:

1.) All malfunctions will be reported immediately to the Maintenance Manager and/or Plater Supervisor who in turn will report the malfunction to the Plant Manager and the Protective Services Central Dispatch at 554-7180.

2.) The Environmental Coordinator, or designate, will make the required notifications to the MDEQ in accordance with the applicable rules and permit requirements.

Primary Responsibility:

Page | 3

LACKS – AIRLANE <u>NORTH</u> PLATER

Chrome Etch Tanks and Chrome Plate Tanks – Composite Mesh Pad Scrubbers and Surface Tension

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Pressure drop across the CMP system	Continuous pressure drop monitoring device, inches of water gauge ("WG)	Continuously during operation	<u>Cr Etch</u> : 2.5-7.5" WG Evaporator: 0 - 4" WG <u>Cr Plate</u> : 1.13 - 5.13" WG Evaporator: 0.5 -4.5" WG	 Alarms will be recorded by the automated system. Daily pressure drop readings will be recorded by lab personnel.
Chrome Etch Wash down water flow rate to each pad.	Flow meter (GPM)	During pad wash down	30 GPM minimum wash rate <u>Pad #1:</u> each hour for a minimum of 1 minute <u>Pad #2:</u> each day for a minimum of 1 minute <u>Pad#3:</u> each week manually until clear	Alarms for low flow will be recorded by the automated monitoring system.
<u>Chrome Plate</u> Wash down water flow rate to each pad.	Flow meter (GPM)	During pad wash down	30 GPM minimum wash rate <u>Pad #1:</u> each hour for a minimum of 1 minute <u>Pad #2:</u> each day for a minimum of 1 minute <u>Pad#3:</u> each week manually until clear	Alarms for low flow will be recorded by the automated monitoring system.
Confirmation of pad wash down	Visual	Each week of operation	Flow to the wash down water collection tank	Maintenance records
Ductwork, transitions, scrubber base, wash down plumbing, blower, housing, and motor.	Visual inspection	Monthly	No leaks, cracks, gaps, damage, or missing components. No audible signs of air leaks or bypass. No abnormal vibration or noise.	Maintenance records and photographs of each side and top of the ductwork and scrubber body.
Condition of CMP system	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	Proper drainage, no chromic acid build- up on the pads or gaps allowing bypass, no evidence of chemical attack on the structural integrity.	Maintenance records
Condition of the back portion of the mesh pad closest to the fan.	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No breakthrough of chromic acid mist	Maintenance records
Ductwork from tanks to the scrubber	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No leaks, cracks or gaps	Maintenance records

 $\label{eq:linear} \label{eq:linear} \label{eq:$

LACKS – AIRLANE NORTH PLATER

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Condition of pads	Visual inspection performed under the supervision of the Plant Engineer – Plating Operations or designate.	Annual	Remove top covers – inspect for gaps around the pads which would allow air to bypass.	Composite Mesh Pad Scrubber System – Annual PM's checklist.
Chrome etch tanks surface tension	Tensiometer	Each day of operation	Less than 45 dynes/cm	Surface tension results will be recorded each day by lab personnel.
Chrome plate tanks surface tension	Tensiometer	Each day of operation	Less than 45 dynes/cm	Surface tension results will be recorded each day by lab personnel.

Malfunction Corrective Actions:

1.) Notify the plating supervisor to initiate immediate shut down of the affected process and begin an inspection of the system. Cease operating until normal operation of the scrubber is restored.

2.) Prepare a Maintenance Work Request (MWR) to perform a determination of the cause of the malfunction and initiate the necessary corrective actions. Record the date, time, duration of the malfunction, who was notified and the corrective actions on the MWR.

3.) If applicable, modify the MAP to incorporate the actions taken to correct and to prevent a reoccurrence of the malfunction.

Additional Requirements:

Each quarterly inspection report will include a description of the working condition of the scrubber, any observed problems, corrective actions and will be reviewed by the inspector's supervisor as evidenced by the supervisor's name and review date.

Training Requirements:

All maintenance staff conducting inspections of the control equipment shall be trained on the specifics of the inspections, how to properly conduct them, and conditions to look for that may indicate an abnormal condition.

Malfunction Reporting Requirements:

1.) All malfunctions will be reported immediately to the Maintenance Manager and/or Plater Supervisor who in turn will report the malfunction to the Plant Manager and the Protective Services Central Dispatch at 554-7180.

2.) The Environmental Coordinator, or designate, will make the required notifications to the MDEQ in accordance with the applicable rules and permit requirements.

Primary Responsibility:

LACKS – AIRLANE <u>NORTH</u> PLATER

Conditioner Tank, Electroless Copper Tanks and Strip Tanks Packed Bed Scrubbers

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Pressure drop across the packed bed	Continuous pressure drop monitoring device, inches of water gauge ("WG)	Continuously during operation	Recommended pressure drop Conditioner : 0.1 – 3.0" WG EC copper : 0.1 –3.0" WG Strip : 0.1 – 3.0" WG	1.) Alarms will be recorded by the automated system.
Water flow to the packed bed (circulating rate)	Continuous flow meter (GPM).	Continuously during operation	Scrubber minimum flow rate Conditioner: 50 GPM EC copper: 50 GPM Strip: 80 GPM	Alarms for low flow will be recorded by an automated system.
Water bleed-off rate	Continuous flow meter (GPM).	Continuously during operation	Conditioner: 1.0 GPM minimum EC copper: 3.0 GPM minimum Strip: 5.0 GPM minimum	Alarms for low flow will be recorded by an automated system.
Condition of packed bed	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	Proper drainage, no build-up on beds, no evidence of chemical attack on the structural integrity.	Maintenance records
Condition of back portion of the mist eliminator	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No evidence of chemical breakthrough.	Maintenance records
Ductwork from tanks to the scrubber	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No leaks, cracks or gaps	Maintenance records

Malfunction Corrective Actions:

1.) Notify the plating supervisor to initiate immediate shut down of the affected process and begin an inspection of the system. Cease operating until normal operation of the scrubber is restored.

2.) Prepare a Maintenance Work Request (MWR) to perform a determination of the cause of the visible emissions and initiate the necessary corrective actions. Record the date, time, duration of the malfunction, who was notified and the corrective actions on the MWR.

3.) If applicable, modify the MAP to incorporate the actions taken to correct and to prevent a reoccurrence of the malfunction.

Additional Requirements:

Each quarterly inspection report will include a description of the working condition of the scrubber, any observed problems, corrective actions and will be reviewed by the inspector's supervisor as evidenced by the supervisor's name and review date.

Malfunction Reporting Requirements:

1.) All malfunctions will be reported immediately to the Maintenance Manager and/or Plater Supervisor who in turn will report the malfunction to the Plant Manager and the Protective Services Central Dispatch at 554-7180.

 $\label{eq:label} $$ \label{eq:label} $$ \lab$

2.) The Environmental Coordinator, or designate, will make the required notifications to the MDEQ in accordance with the applicable rules and permit requirements.

Primary Responsibility:

Maintenance Manager

Neutralizer, Catalyst, Accelerator, Copper Plating, and Nickel Plating Tanks Fan and Ventilation Systems

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Fan operation	Electrical current draw	Continuous – automated monitoring system	Electrical current draw when the plater is in operation.	Alarms for loss of electrical current draw will be recorded by an automated system.
Condition of the ductwork, fans, motors, belts, support structures and stacks.	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No leaks, cracks, gaps in the ductwork and stacks or operating problems with the fans and motors.	Maintenance records

Malfunction Corrective Actions:

If problems are observed, notify the plating supervisor to initiate inspection of the system. Prepare a Maintenance Work Request (MWR) to perform a determination of the cause of the malfunction and initiate the necessary corrective actions. Record the date, time, duration of the malfunction, who was notified and the corrective actions on the MWR.

Malfunction Reporting Requirements:

1.) All malfunctions will be reported immediately to the Maintenance Manager and/or Plater Supervisor.

2.) The Environmental Coordinator, or designate, will make the required notifications to the MDEQ in accordance with the applicable rules and permit requirements.

Primary Responsibility:

LACKS – AIRLANE <u>SOUTH</u> PLATER

ENVIRONMENTAL MALFUNCTION ABATEMENT – OPERATION & MAINTENANCE PLAN

For

LACKS Enterprises, Inc.

AIRLANE SOUTH PLATER

4260 Airlane S.E.

Kentwood, Michigan

Michigan SRN # N0895

Permit: MI-ROP-N0895-2012

Revised: March 4, 2014

Revised: October 16, 2014

Revised: September 2, 2016

Revised: June 22, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS Page

Facility Wide Requirements	2
Chrome Etch and Chrome Plate Tanks	3
Conditioner, Electroless Copper, and Strip Tanks	5
Neutralizer, Catalyst, Accelerator, Copper Plate and Nickel Plate Tanks	6

C:\Users\karenb\Documents\Karen\Air\MA-O&M Plans\Airlane\Airlane South MA - O&M Plan.docx

<u>Maintenance records</u> will consist primarily of the computer based MP2 preventive maintenance system. Additional maintenance records may include PM Work Orders, Maintenance Work Requests, checklists, purchase orders, and other documents which describe the maintenance tasks and corrective actions. All records will be maintained for a minimum of five (5) years.

All <u>Malfunction Alarms</u> will be activated immediately within the building and will consist of both audible and visual alarms and will be recorded by the automated system. The alarm will also appear in the plating laboratory on a system monitor.

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Opacity	Non-certified visual observation	Once each week during operation	Other than uncombined water vapor, there must be no visible emission (0% opacity) from a stack.	Record the following observations for each stack: date, time, visible emissions observed (yes/no).
Condition of the automated alarm system	Test each alarm for proper operation	Each quarter	The sensor sends an alarm signal and the alarm is recorded.	The test results and corrective actions will be recorded in Preventive Maintenance (PM) program.

Malfunction Corrective Actions:

If visible emissions are observed, notify the plating supervisor to initiate immediate shut down of the affected process and begin an inspection of the system. Prepare a Maintenance Work Request (MWR) to perform a determination of the cause of the visible emissions and initiate the necessary corrective actions. Record the date, time, duration of the malfunction, who was notified and the corrective actions on the MWR.

Malfunction Reporting Requirements:

1.) All malfunctions will be reported immediately to the Maintenance Manager and/or Plater Supervisor who in turn will report the malfunction to the Plant Manager and the Protective Services Central Dispatch at 554-7180.

2.) The Environmental Coordinator, or designate, will make the required notifications to the MDEQ in accordance with the applicable rules and permit requirements.

Primary Responsibility:

Chrome Etch Tanks and Chrome Plate Tanks – Composite Mesh Pad Scrubbers and Surface Tension

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Pressure drop across the CMP system	Continuous pressure drop monitoring device, inches of water gauge ("WG)	Continuously during operation	<u>Cr Etch</u> : 2.5-7.5" WG Evaporator: 0.25 -4.25" WG <u>Cr Plate #1</u> : 1.30 – 5.30" WG Evaporator: 0.5 -4.5" WG <u>Cr Plate #2</u> : 1.40-5.40" WG	 1.) Alarms will be recorded by the automated system. 2.) Daily pressure drop readings will be recorded by lab personnel.
<u>Chrome Etch</u> Wash down water flow rate to each pad.	Flow meter (GPM)	During pad wash down	35 GPM minimum wash rate <u>Pad #1:</u> each hour for a minimum of 1 minute <u>Pad #2:</u> each day for a minimum of 1 minute <u>Pad#3:</u> each week manually until clear	Alarms for low flow will be recorded by the automated monitoring system.
<u>Chrome Plate</u> Wash down water flow rate to each pad.	Flow meter (GPM)	During pad wash down	25 GPM minimum wash rate <u>Pad #1:</u> each hour for a minimum of 1 minute <u>Pad #2:</u> each day for a minimum of 1 minute <u>Pad#3:</u> each week manually until clear	Alarms for low flow will be recorded by the automated monitoring system.
Confirmation of pad wash down	Visual	Each week of operation	Flow to the wash down water collection tank	Maintenance records
Condition of CMP system	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	Proper drainage, no chromic acid build-up on the pads or gaps allowing bypass, no evidence of chemical attack on the structural integrity.	Maintenance records
Condition of the back portion of the mesh pad closest to the fan.	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No breakthrough of chromic acid mist	Maintenance records
Ductwork from tanks to the scrubber	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No leaks, cracks or gaps	Maintenance records

C:\Users\karenb\Documents\Karen\Air\MA-O&M Plans\Airlane\Airlane South MA - O&M Plan.docx

LACKS – AIRLANE SOUTH PLATER

Page 4

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements	
Condition of pads	Visual inspection performed under the supervision of the Plant Engineer – Plating Operations or designate.	Annual	Remove top covers – inspect for gaps around the pads which would allow air to bypass.	Composite Mesh Pad Scrubber System – Annual PM's checklist.	
Chrome etch tanks surface tension	Tensiometer	Each day of operation	Less than 45 dynes/cm	Surface tension results will be recorded each day by lab personnel.	
Chrome plate tanks surface tension	Tensiometer	Each day of operation	Less than 45 dynes/cm	Surface tension results will be recorded each day by lab personnel.	

Malfunction Corrective Actions:

1.) Notify the plating supervisor to initiate immediate shut down of the affected process and begin an inspection of the system. Cease operating until normal operation of the scrubber is restored.

2.) Prepare a Maintenance Work Request (MWR) to perform a determination of the cause of the malfunction and initiate the necessary corrective actions. Record the date, time, duration of the malfunction, who was notified and the corrective actions on the MWR.

3.) If applicable, modify the MAP to incorporate the actions taken to correct and to prevent a reoccurrence of the malfunction.

Additional Requirements:

Each quarterly inspection report will include a description of the working condition of the scrubber, any observed problems, corrective actions and will be reviewed by the inspector's supervisor as evidenced by the supervisor's name and review date.

Malfunction Reporting Requirements:

1.) All malfunctions will be reported immediately to the Maintenance Manager and/or Plater Supervisor who in turn will report the malfunction to the Plant Manager and the Protective Services Central Dispatch at 554-7180.

2.) The Environmental Coordinator, or designate, will make the required notifications to the MDEQ in accordance with the applicable rules and permit requirements.

Primary Responsibility:

LACKS – AIRLANE <u>SOUTH</u> PLATER

Conditioner Tank, Electroless Copper Tanks and Strip Tanks Packed Bed Scrubbers

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Pressure drop across the packed bed	Continuous pressure drop monitoring device, inches of water gauge ("WG)	Continuously during operation	Recommended pressure drop Conditioner : 0.1 – 3.0" WG EC copper : 0.1 – 3.0" WG Strip : 0.5 – 3.0" WG	1.) Alarms will be recorded by the automated system.
Water flow to the packed bed (circulating rate)	Continuous flow meter (GPM).	Continuously during operation	Scrubber minimum flow rate Conditioner: 25 GPM EC copper: 80 GPM Strip: 80 GPM	Alarms for low flow will be recorded by an automated system.
Water bleed-off rate	Continuous flow meter (GPM).	Continuously during operation	Conditioner: 1.0 GPM minimum EC copper: 3.0 GPM minimum Strip: 5.0 GPM minimum	Alarms for low flow will be recorded by an automated system.
Condition of packed bed	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	Proper drainage, no build-up on beds, no evidence of chemical attack on the structural integrity.	Maintenance records
Condition of back portion of the mist eliminator	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No evidence of chemical breakthrough.	Maintenance records
Ductwork from tanks to the scrubber	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No leaks, cracks or gaps	Maintenance records

Malfunction Corrective Actions:

1.) Notify the plating supervisor to initiate immediate shut down of the affected process and begin an inspection of the system. Cease operating until normal operation of the scrubber is restored.

2.) Prepare a Maintenance Work Request (MWR) to perform a determination of the cause of the visible emissions and initiate the necessary corrective actions. Record the date, time, duration of the malfunction, who was notified and the corrective actions on the MWR.

3.) If applicable, modify the MAP to incorporate the actions taken to correct and to prevent a reoccurrence of the malfunction.

Additional Requirements:

Each quarterly inspection report will include a description of the working condition of the scrubber, any observed problems, corrective actions and will be reviewed by the inspector's supervisor as evidenced by the supervisor's name and review date.

Malfunction Reporting Requirements:

1.) All malfunctions will be reported immediately to the Maintenance Manager and/or Plater Supervisor who in turn will report the malfunction to the Plant Manager and the Protective Services Central Dispatch at 554-7180.

2.) The Environmental Coordinator, or designate, will make the required notifications to the MDEQ in accordance with the applicable rules and permit requirements.

 $\label{eq:c:Userskarenb} C: \label{eq:c:Userskarenb} C:$

Primary Responsibility:

Maintenance Manager

Neutralizer, Catalyst, Accelerator, Copper Plating, and Nickel Plating Tanks Fan and Ventilation Systems

Operating Variable	Monitoring Method	Monitoring Frequency	Normal Operating Range	Recordkeeping Requirements
Fan operation	Electrical current draw	Continuous – automated monitoring system	Electrical current draw when the plater is in operation.	Alarms for loss of electrical current draw will be recorded by an automated system.
Condition of the ductwork, fans, motors, belts, support structures and stacks.	Visual inspection	Once per quarter	No leaks, cracks, gaps in the ductwork and stacks or operating problems with the fans and motors.	Maintenance records

Malfunction Corrective Actions:

If problems are observed, notify the plating supervisor to initiate inspection of the system. Prepare a Maintenance Work Request (MWR) to perform a determination of the cause of the malfunction and initiate the necessary corrective actions. Record the date, time, duration of the malfunction, who was notified and the corrective actions on the MWR.

Malfunction Reporting Requirements:

1.) All malfunctions will be reported immediately to the Maintenance Manager and/or Plater Supervisor.

2.) The Environmental Coordinator, or designate, will make the required notifications to the MDEQ in accordance with the applicable rules and permit requirements.

Primary Responsibility:

Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy - Air Quality Division



RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT RENEWAL APPLICATION FORM



This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, Part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete the Renewable Operating Permit Renewal Application Form.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

This application form should be submitted as part of an administratively complete application package for renewal of a Renewable Operating Permit (ROP). This application form consists of nine parts. Parts A – H must be completed for all applications and must also be completed for each section of a sectioned ROP. Answer all questions in all parts of the form unless directed otherwise. Detailed instructions for this application form can be found at http://michigan.gov/air (select the Permits Tab, "Renewable Operating Permits (ROP)/Title V", then "ROP Forms & Templates").

PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

Enter information about the source, owner, contact person and the responsible official.

SOURCE INFORMATION

SRN	SIC Code	NAICS Co	de	Existing ROP Number			Section Num	ber (if applicable)
N0895	3714	336390		MI-R				
Source Name Lacks Enterprises	Source Name Lacks Enterprises, Inc.							
Street Address 4260 Airlane Road	1 SE							
City			State		ZIP Code	County		
Kentwood			MI		49512	Kent		
Section/Town/Range (if address not avail	able)		1	hi.	1		
Source Description								
Molding and surfa	ce coating of p	lastic auto	omotive pa	arts				
Check here if a	any of the abov	e informa	ation is diff	eren	t than what a	ppears in the existing	g ROP. Ide	ntify any changes
on the marked	-up copy of you		J KOF.					
OWNER INFORM	ATION							
Owner Name							Section Num	ber (if applicable)
Lacks Enterprises	, Inc.							200 190 197 - 204
Mailing address (neck if same as sou	Irce addres	s)					
5460 Cascade Ro	ad							
City			State		ZIP Code	County		Country
Grand Rapids			MI		49546	Kent		USA

PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

At least one contact and responsible official must be identified. Additional contacts and responsible officials may be included if necessary.

CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact 1 Name		Title				
Karen Baweja			Environmental Manager			
Company Name & Mailing addres Lacks Enterprises Plastic P	s (∏ check if same as Plate Kraft 5675 Kra	source address) aft Ave. SE				
City	State	ZIP Code	County	Country		
Grand Rapids	MI	49512	Kent	USA		
Phone number		E-mail address				
616-956-7259		k.baweja@la	cksenterprises.com			

Contact 2 Name (optional)		·	Title		
Ken Bailey			Director of EHS and Protective Services		
Company Name & Mailing addres Lacks Enterprises 4949 Br	ss (⊟ check if same as so oadmoor Ave. SE	ource address)		
City	State	ZIP Code	County	Country	
Kentwood	MI	49512	Kent	USA	
Phone number		E-mail ac	Idress	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
616-554-2307		k.bailey	@lacksenterprises.cor	n	

RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL INFORMATION

Responsible Official 1 Name		Title			
Jim Morrissey			General Plant Manager		
Company Name & Mailing addre Lacks Trim Systems Airla	ss (□ check if same as so ne North 4260 Airlane	ource address) e Road SE			
City	State	ZIP Code	County	Country	
Kentwood	М	49512	Kent	USA	
Phone number		E-mail address			
616-554-3479		j.morrissey@	lackstrim.com		

Responsible Official 2 Name (optional) Bob Bieri			Title VP & GM Lacks Trim S	ystems	
Company Name & Mailing address (□ check if same as source address) Lacks Enterprises 5460 Cascade Road)		
City Grand Rapids	State MI	ZIP Code 49546	County Kent	Country USA	
Phone number 616-554-7860		E-mail ac b.bieri@	dress)lackstrim.com		

Check here if an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part A. Enter AI-001 Form ID:

PART B: APPLICATION SUBMITTAL and CERTIFICATION by Responsible Official

Identify the items that are included as part of your administratively complete application in the checklist below. For your application to be complete, it must include information necessary to evaluate the source and to determine all applicable requirements. Answer the compliance statements as they pertain to all the applicable requirements to which the source is subject. The source's Responsible Official must sign and date this form.

Listir	isting of ROP Application Contents. Check the box for the items included with your application.						
	Completed ROP Renewal Application Form (and any Al-001 Forms) (required)		Compliance Plan/Schedule of Compliance				
	Mark-up copy of existing ROP using official version from the AQD website (required)		Stack information				
	Copies of all Permit(s) to Install (PTIs) that have not been incorporated into existing ROP (required)		Acid Rain Permit Initial/Renewal Application				
	Criteria Pollutant/Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP) Potential to Emit Calculations		Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR) Information				
	MAERS Forms (to report emissions not previously submitted)		Confidential Information				
	Copies of all Consent Order/Consent Judgments that have not been incorporated into existing ROP	\boxtimes	Paper copy of all documentation provided (required)				
	Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan	\boxtimes	Electronic documents provided (optional)				
	Other Plans (e.g., Malfunction Abatement, Fugitive Dust, Operation and Maintenance, etc.)	\boxtimes	Other, explain: Permit to Install for pre-etch tank associated with question C4				

Compliance Statement

This source is in compliance with all of its applicable requirements, including those contained in the existing ROP. Permits to Install that have not vet been incorporated into that ROP, and other ⊠Yes ∏No applicable requirements not currently contained in the existing ROP.

This source will continue to be in compliance with all of its applicable requirements, including those contained in the existing ROP. Permits to Install that have not yet been incorporated into that ROP. and other applicable requirements not currently contained in the existing ROP.

This source will meet in a timely manner applicable requirements that become effective during the permit term.

The method(s) used to determine compliance for each applicable requirement is/are the method(s) specified in the existing ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been incorporated into that ROP, and all other applicable requirements not currently contained in the existing ROP.

If any of the above are checked No, identify the emission unit(s) or flexible group(s) affected and the specific condition number(s) or applicable requirement for which the source is or will be out of compliance at the time of issuance of the ROP renewal on an AI-001 Form. Provide a compliance plan and schedule of compliance on an AI-001 Form.

Name and Title of the Responsible Official (Print or Type)

Jim Morrissey, General Plant Manager

As a Responsible Official, I certify that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry. the statements and information in this application are true, accurate, and complete.

9-22-2023

Signature of Responsible Official

🖾 Yes 🗌 No

🛛 Yes 🗌 No

PART C: SOURCE REQUIREMENT INFORMATION

Answer the questions below for specific requirements or programs to which the source may be subject.

C1.	Actual emissions and associated data from <u>all</u> emission units with applicable requirements (including those identified in the existing ROP, Permits to Install and other equipment that have not yet been incorporated into the ROP) are required to be reported in MAERS. Are there any emissions and associated data that have <u>not</u> been reported in MAERS for the most recent emissions reporting year? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) that was/were not reported in MAERS on an AI-001 Form. Applicable MAERS form(s) for unreported emission units must be included with this application.	☐ Yes	No 🛛
C2.	Is this source subject to the federal regulations on ozone-depleting substances? (40 CFR Part 82)	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
C3.	Is this source subject to the federal Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions? (Section 112(r) of the Clean Air Act Amendments, 40 CFR Part 68)	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , a Risk Management Plan (RMP) and periodic updates must be submitted to the USEPA. Has an updated RMP been submitted to the USEPA?	🗌 Yes	🗌 No
C4.	Has this stationary source <u>added or modified</u> equipment since the last ROP renewal that changes the potential to emit (PTE) for criteria pollutant (CO, NOx, PM10, PM2.5, SO ₂ , VOC, lead) emissions?	🛛 Yes	🗌 No
	numbers, or other references for the PTE demonstration) for the added or modified equipment on an AI-001 Form. If <u>No</u> , criteria pollutant potential emission calculations do not need to be included.		
C5.	Has this stationary source added or modified equipment since the last ROP renewal that changes the PTE for hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) regulated by Section 112 of the federal Clean Air Act?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	numbers or other references for the PTE demonstration) for the added or modified equipment on an AI-001 Form. Fugitive emissions must be included in HAP emission calculations. If No, HAP potential emission calculations do not need to be included.		
C6.	Are any emission units subject to the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR)? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific emission unit(s) subject to CSAPR on an AI-001 Form.	☐ Yes	🛛 No
C7.	Are any emission units subject to the federal Acid Rain Program? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific emission unit(s) subject to the federal Acid Rain Program on an AI-001 Form.	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	Is an Acid Rain Permit Renewal Application included with this application?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
C8.	Are any emission units identified in the existing ROP subject to compliance assurance monitoring (CAM)? (CAM)? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific emission unit(s) subject to CAM on an AI-001 Form. If a CAM plan has not been previously submitted to EGLE, one must be included with the ROP renewal application on an AI-001 Form. If the CAM Plan has been updated, include an updated copy.	Yes	🛛 No
	Is a CAM plan included with this application?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	 Monitoring proposed by the source based on performance of the control device, or Presumptively Acceptable Monitoring, if eligible 		
C9.	Does the source have any plans such as a malfunction abatement plan, fugitive dust plan, operation/maintenance plan, or any other monitoring plan that is referenced in an existing ROP, Permit to Install requirement, or any other applicable requirement?	🛛 Yes	🗌 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , then a copy must be submitted as part of the ROP renewal application.		
C10.	Are there any specific requirements that the source proposes to be identified in the ROP as non-applicable?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , then a description of the requirement and justification must be submitted as part of the ROP renewal application on an AI-001 Form.		
	Check here if an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part C. Enter AI-001 For	m ID: Al	-C4

SRN: N0895 Section Number (if applicable):

PART D: PERMIT TO INSTALL (PTI) EXEMPT EMISSION UNIT INFORMATION

Review all emission units at the source and answer the question below.

D1. Does the source have any emission units that do not appear in the existing ROP but are required to be listed in the ROP application under R 336.1212(4) (Rule 212(4)) of the Michigan Air Pollution Control Rules? If <u>Yes</u>, identify the emission units in the table below.

Yes No

If No, go to Part E.

Note: Emission units that are subject to process specific emission limitations or standards, even if identified in Rule 212, must be captured in either Part G or H of this application form. Identical emission units may be grouped (e.g. PTI exempt Storage Tanks).

Emission Unit ID	Emission Unit Description	Rule 212(4) Citation [e.g. Rule 212(4)(c)]	Rule 201 Exemption Rule Citation [e.g. Rule 282(2)(b)(i)]
EUAIRMAKEUP	Campus (6) buildings natural gas usage, air makeup units and heaters	Rule 212(4)(c)	Rule 282(b)(i)
EUALNWMOLD	Plastic injection molding facility		Rule 286(2)(b)
EUAWMOLD	Plastic injection molding facility		Rule 286(2)(b)
Comments:			
Check here if a	an Al-001 Form is attached to provide more infor	mation for Part D. Enter	Al-001 Form ID: Al-

SRN: N0895	Section Number (if applicable):	

PART E: EXISTING ROP INFORMATION

Review all emission units and applicable requirements (including any source wide requirements) in the <u>existing</u> ROP and answer the questions below as they pertain to <u>all</u> emission units and <u>all</u> applicable requirements in the existing ROP.

1			
E1.	Does the source propose to make any additions, changes or deletions to terms, conditions and underlying applicable requirements as they appear in the existing ROP?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	If Yes, identify changes and additions on Part F, Part G and/or Part H.		
E2.	For each emission unit(s) identified in the existing ROP, <u>all</u> stacks with applicable requirements are to be reported in MAERS. Are there any stacks with applicable requirements for emission unit(s) identified in the existing ROP that were <u>not</u> reported in the most recent MAERS reporting year? If <u>Yes</u> , identity the stack(s) that was/were not reported on applicable MAERS form(s).	🗌 Yes	🖾 No
E3.	Have any emission units identified in the existing ROP been modified or reconstructed that required a PTI?	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
	If Yes, complete Part F with the appropriate information.		
E4.	Have any emission units identified in the existing ROP been dismantled? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) and the dismantle date in the comment area below or on an AI-001 Form.	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
Cor	nments:		
	Check here it an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part E. Enter AI-001 For	m ID: Al-	-

PART F: PERMIT TO INSTALL (PTI) INFORMATION

.

i

Review all emission units and applicable requirements at the source and answer the following questions as they pertain to <u>all</u> emission units with PTIs. Any PTI(s) identified below must be attached to the application.

F1. Has the source been incorpora If <u>No</u> , go to Pa	e obtained any PTIs ated into the existing rt G.	where the applicable requirements from the PTI have not ROP? If <u>Yes</u> , complete the following table.	🗌 Yes 🖾 No
Permit to Install Number	Emission Units/Flexible Group ID(s)	Description (Include Process Equipment, Control Devices and Monitoring Devices)	Date Emission Unit was Installed/ Modified/ Reconstructed
		· · ·	
F2. Do any of the l emission unit affected in the and deletions i	PTIs listed above cha s in the existing ROI comments area belo in a mark-up of the e	ange, add, or delete terms/conditions to established P? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) or flexible group(s) ow or on an Al-001 Form and identify all changes, additions, existing ROP.	🗌 Yes 🔲 No
F3. Do any of the l the ROP? If <u>Y</u> and include the	PTIs listed above ide <u>´es</u> , submit the PTIs e new emission unit(entify new emission units that need to be incorporated into as part of the ROP renewal application on an Al-001 Form, s) or flexible group(s) in the mark-up of the existing ROP.	🗌 Yes 📋 No
F4. Are there any listed above th <u>Yes</u> , identity th	stacks with applicabl at were <u>not</u> reported he stack(s) that were	le requirements for emission unit(s) identified in the PTIs in MAERS for the most recent emissions reporting year? If not reported on the applicable MAERS form(s).	Yes 🗌 No
F5. Are there any or control devi the ROP? If <u>Y</u>	proposed administra ces in the PTIs listec <u>es,</u> describe the cha	tive changes to any of the emission unit names, descriptions above for any emission units not already incorporated into inges on an AI-001 Form.	Yes No
Comments:			
Check here if	an Al-001 Form is a	attached to provide more information for Part F. Enter AI-001 F	⁻ orm ID: AI-

SRN: N0895 Sec

Section Number (if applicable):

PART G: EMISSION UNITS MEETING THE CRITERIA OF RULES 281(2)(h), 285(2)(r)(iv), 287(2)(c), OR 290

Review all emission units and applicable requirements at the source and answer the following questions.

G1. Does the source have ar the existing ROP and wh	ny new and/or existing emission units which do <u>not</u> already appear in hich meet the criteria of Rules 281(2)(h), 285(2)(r)(iv), 287(2)(c), or 290.		
If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emiss	ion units in the table below. If <u>No</u> , go to Part H.	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
Note: If several emission of each and an installation	n units were installed under the same rule above, provide a description on/modification/reconstruction date for each.		
Origin of Applicable Requirements	Emission Unit Description – Provide Emission Unit ID and a description of Process Equipment, Control Devices and Monitoring Devices	Date Emis Unit was I Modified/ Reconstru	sion nstalled/ icted
Rule 281(2)(h) or 285(2)(r)(iv) cleaning operation			
Rule 287(2)(c) surface coating line			
Rule 290 process with limited emissions			
Comments:			
Check here if an Al-00	1 Form is attached to provide more information for Part G. Enter AI-001	Form ID: A	\ -

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE

Complete this part of the application form for all proposed additions, changes or deletions to the existing ROP. This includes state or federal regulations that the source is subject to and that must be incorporated into the ROP or other proposed changes to the existing ROP. Do not include additions or changes that have already been identified in Parts F or G of this application form. If additional space is needed copy and complete an additional Part H.

Complete a separate Part H for each emission unit with proposed additions and/or changes.

H1.	Are there changes that need to be incorporated into the ROP that have not been identified in Parts F and G? If <u>Yes</u> , answer the questions below.	🗌 Yes	🛛 No
H2.	Are there any proposed administrative changes to any of the existing emission unit names, descriptions or control devices in the ROP? If <u>Yes</u> , describe the changes in questions H8 – H16 below and in the affected Emission Unit Table(s) in the mark-up of the ROP.	Yes	🗌 No
Н3.	Does the source propose to add a new emission unit or flexible group to the ROP not previously identified in Parts F or G? If <u>Yes</u> , identify and describe the emission unit name, process description, control device(s), monitoring device(s) and applicable requirements in questions H8 – H16 below and in a new Emission Unit Table in the mark-up of the ROP. See instructions on how to incorporate a new emission unit/flexible group into the ROP.	☐ Yes	🗌 No
H4.	Does the source propose to add new state or federal regulations to the existing ROP?	🗌 Yes	🗌 No
	If <u>Yes</u> , on an AI-001 Form, identify each emission unit/flexible group that the new regulation applies to and identify <u>each</u> state or federal regulation that should be added. Also, describe the new requirements in questions H8 – H16 below and add the specific requirements to existing emission units/flexible groups in the mark-up of the ROP, create a new Emission Unit/Flexible Group Table, or add an AQD template table for the specific state or federal requirement.		
H5.	Has a Consent Order/Consent Judgment (CO/CJ) been issued where the requirements were not incorporated into the existing ROP? If <u>Yes</u> , list the CO/CJ number(s) below and add or change the conditions and underlying applicable requirements in the appropriate Emission Unit/Flexible Group Tables in the mark-up of the ROP.	Yes	No No
H6.	Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete source-wide requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	∏ No
H7.	Are you proposing to streamline any requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the streamlined and subsumed requirements and the EU ID, and provide a justification for streamlining the applicable requirement below.	Yes	No

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE – (continued)

H8. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete emission limit requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	Yes	No No
H9. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete material limit requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	∏ No
H10. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete process/operational restriction requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	☐ No
H11.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete design/equipment parameter requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	∏ No
H12.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete testing/sampling requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	□ No
H13.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete monitoring/recordkeeping requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	Yes	No No
H14.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete reporting requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	☐ No

SRN: N0895 Section Number (if applicable):

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE – (continued)

H15. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete stack/vent restrictions ? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	□ No
H16.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete any other requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	No
H17.Does the source propose to add terms and conditions for an alternative operating scenario or intra-facility trading of emissions? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the proposed conditions in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	□ No
Check here if an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part H. Enter AI-001 Fo	orm ID: Al-	•

.

13

.ł.



RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATION AI-001: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Please type or print clearly. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete this form.

	SRN: N0895	Section Number (if applicable):		
1. Additional Information ID AI-C4	L			
Additional Information				
2. Is This Information Confidential?		🗋 Yes 🛛 No		
Permit to install PTI 59-19 was approved for the installation of a pre-etch tank and is included with this application. This tank changed the potential to emit for VOC emissions. Potential to emit calculations were provided with the permit application for PTI 59-19. PTI 59-19 has already been rolled into the ROP.				
		Page 1 of 1		